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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors are pleased to submit their 14" Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS, STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS & FUTURE OUTLOOK

Your Company has yet to commence commercial operations. The Companyis developingan all
villa hotel complex and a PGA Standard 18 hole, 72 par championship golf course in Goa for
which it has acquired substantial parcels of land. The said project will be under the management
of Four Seasons, a world famed hotel chain and Hospitality Management Company.

The Companyhas already obtained permissions/approvals from various governmentauthorities.

Petitions filed before the National Green Tribunal against grant of Coastal Regulation Zone and
Private Forest by the competent authorities to the aforesaid project at Goa are being contested by
the Company. Based on legal advice received and outcome of similar cases in the past, your
directors are hopeful of a favorable outcome and do not foresee these petitions having any
material impact on the progressof the project.

Petition filed before the National Green Tribunal against Environmental Clearance issued by the
Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change has not been admitted so far. Based on
legal advice received, your directors are hopeful of a favorable outcome and do not foresee this
petition having any material impact on the progress of the project.

In a Petition filed before the High Court of Bombay at Goa, the Order passed by the Deputy
Collector declaring the disputed land free from tenancy was challenged. The Hon’ble Court has
restrained the parties concerned not to act any further on the impugned order until further orders
of the Hon’ble Court. The Company is taking appropriate legal recourse, and is confidentof its
positive outcome.

During the year under review, the Company has earned a total income of Rs. 5,14,883/- on
account of interest income as compared to Rs. 2,18,965/- in the previous year. After meeting the
administrative expenses of Rs. 81,14,358/- (Previous Year Rs. 86,61,652/-), the Company

registered a loss of Rs. 75,99,475/- as compared to a loss of Rs. 84,42,687/- in the previous year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES/DIVIDEND

Since the Company has not yet commenced its operations, it is neither in a position to declare
any dividend nor transfer any amount to General Reserve for the year under review.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material change or commitment has occurred since the end ofthe financial year under review
or subsequently upto the date of this Report which may adversely affect the financial position of
the Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the year under review or since the end of that financial year and up to the date of this
report, no significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which may impact the going concern status and future operations of the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There is no change in the Company’scapital structure since the last report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The existing Statutory Auditors of the Company, namely M/s. Dhirubhai Shah & Doshi,,

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 102511W), were appointed in the 12" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, held on 10" August, 2017, to hold office from the conclusion
of the said Annual General Meetingtill the conclusion of the 17Annual General Meeting ofthe
Company. However,their firm’s name changed to ‘M/s. Dhirubhai Shah & Co’ with effect from
5™ March, 2018, and subsequently to M/s. Dhirubhai Shah & Co LLP effective 25" July, 2018,
with Firm Registration No. 102511W/W100298.

M/s. Dhirubhai Shah & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, have conveyed their consent and

eligibility for their continued appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Companyforthe financial
year 2019-20.

The Statutory Auditors in their report have invited attention of the Members towards Note no. 3
to the Financial Statements detailing that the Company has not provided for interest liability
amounting to Rs. 7,50,13,349/- relating to Inter-Corporate Deposits and other financial
commitments, which has resulted in understatement of Capital Work-in-Progress to that extent as

such interest was supposed to be capitalized and not liable to be charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Their report has expressed a modified opinion to this extent.

In response to the above qualification, the managementhasclarified that in view of the current
financial crunch being faced by the Company, provisionsfor interestliability for the said amount
was not made by it and that the said non-provisioning has had no impact on the current
profit/(loss) of the Company, since this would have otherwise formed part of the Capital work-
in-progress in the financial statements.
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The Directors would like to assure the Members that the project is unique and has a great
potential going forward and the managementis in the process of mobilizing the required funds to
enable the Companyto execute the project.

No frauds have been reported under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) by
the Auditors of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The provisions of Section 204 of the Act relating to Secretarial Audit are not applicable to the
Company. However, your Company is a material subsidiary of Asian Hotels (North) Limited,
whichis a listed entity. Hence in pursuance of Regulation 24A of the SEBI(Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations), your Directors
appointed M/s. Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries, as secretarial auditors of the
Companyfor the financial year 2019-20, in the Board meeting held on 23July, 2019.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year under review, M/s. BGJC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, the

internal auditors of the Company conducted periodic audits of the Company. The Audit
Committee reviews the internal audit reports submitted by the Internal Auditors.

Further, based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors

appointed BGJC & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as internal auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Tapesh Bharat Kumar Goenkaretires by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Accordingly, an appropriate resolution is
proposedat Item No.2 of the Notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting.

Further, Mr. Tapesh Bharat Kumar Goenka completes his term as Managing Director of the
Company on 31“ March, 2019. In view of the above, and considering the recommendations of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 25" May, 2019,
re-appointed him as Joint Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company,subject
howeverto the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting, for a further
term of three years from 1“ April, 2020 to 31 March 2023. Accordingly, an appropriate
resolution is proposed at Item No. 3 of the Notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting.

Dr. Lalit Bhasin, who was appointed as an IndependentINon-executive Director of the Company
for a term of five consecutive years¥with effect from 15" September, 2014 up to 14" September,
2019, or the conclusion of the 14° Annual General Meeting of the Company, whichever is
earlier, completes his term at the ensuing annual general meeting, and one of the members has
served upon the Company a notice under Section 160 of the Act, proposing Dr. Bhasin’s
candidature for re-appointment as Independent Non-executive Director. The above proposal was
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placed before the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, which considered the
aforesaid proposal in the light of the applicable provisions of the Act. Based on his credentials,
professional skill, knowledge, experience and the contributions made by Dr. Bhasin during his
association with the Company, and onthe basis of his performance evaluation as per normsset-
out in the Company’s Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy, and recommendations
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee relating thereto, the Board considered it
desirable and in the interest of the Companyto continue to avail his services as an Independent
Non-executive Director. Considering the above, the Board is of the opinion that Dr. Lalit Bhasin
fulfils the conditions specified under various provisions of the Act and is considered independent
of the management.

In view ofthe above, the Board in its meeting held on 23™ July 2019, re-appointed him as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, subject however to the approval of the
shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting,to hold office for a term of five consecutive
years commencing immediately after the completion of his existing term, as aforesaid.
Accordingly, an appropriate resolution is proposed at Item No. 4 of the Notice convening the
ensuing annual general meeting.

During the year under review, based on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 22nd May, 2018, re-appointed Mr.
Shiv KumarJatia as Managing Director of the Companyfor a further term of three years from 1*
April, 2019 to 31% March 2022, subject however to the approval of the shareholders, which

approval was obtained at the 13 Annual General Meeting held on 31° July, 2018. Further, Ms.
Anita Thapar, who retired by rotation, was also re-appointed as a director liable to retire by
rotation at the said meeting.

Subsequent to the end of the year under review, Mr. Ajay Kumarresigned from the position of
Chief Financial Officer of the Companyeffective 11" April, 2019.

The Boardin its meeting held on 23" July, 2019, evaluated the performanceof Dr. Lalit Bhasin
and Mr. Sanjay Banthiya, Independent Non-Executive Directors in pursuance of the evaluation
mechanism set-out in Schedule IV to the Act read with Section 178 of the Act, as amended, and

the criteria set-out in the Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of the Company, and
commendedtheir performance and decided to continue with their respective terms.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 1345) of the Act, your Directors confirm as under:

= that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2019,
the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures,if any;

= that the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudentso as to give a true and fair
view ofthe state of affairs of the Companyat the end ofthe financial year under review and
ofthe loss of the Companyfor that year;
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« that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

" that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
« that the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INFORMATION REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company’s projectis still in its initial stages and therefore, in the opinion of the Board, the
required particulars pertaining to conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms of
Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable. Further, there were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review as
well as in the previous year. However, there is a foreign exchange profit of Rs. 8646/- arising
due to foreign exchange fluctuations and forms part of other income. Outgo in foreign exchange
is detailed as under:

 

 

 

 

    

Particulars F.Y. 2018-19 F.Y. 2017-18

(in Rupees) (in Rupees)

Fee for Technical and Consultancy 37,77,359 27,77,399

Travelling Expenses oe 3,10,331

Total 37,77,359 30,87,730 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There are no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Act during the year under review.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return pursuantto the provisions of Section 92 of the Act, read with Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed Form
MGT-9 is annexed as Annexure A and formspart ofthis Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

No contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act were
entered to by the Company during the year under review. Accordingly, there are no transactions
which are required to be reported in Form AOC-2.
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enumerating the criteria laid down for nomination/selection, appointment, evaluation and
remuneration of the directors and key managerial personnel, and determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of directors and/or key managerial personnel, is annexed as
Annexure B and formspart of this Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, four Board meetings were held respectively on 12™ April, 2018,
22nd May, 2018, 7 September, 2018 and 29" December, 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee under the provisions of Section 177 of the
Act. The said Committee comprises of three members namely, Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay
Banthiya, both Independent Non-Executive Directors and Mr. Shiv Kumar Jatia, Managing
Director. Dr. Lalit Bhasin chairs the Audit Committee meetings and the quorum for the
Committee meetings is two members.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year under review were duly
accepted by the Board.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay Banthiya Independent Non-executive Directors, have submitted
their declaration that they continue to conform to the criteria set out for an independent director
under Section 149(6) of the Act and the said declarations were taken on record by the Board in
its meeting held on 10" April, 2019. Reliance was placed on these confirmations/declarations
while ascertaining the adequacy of number of independent directors for the purposes of
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. Further, the Board is of the opinion that
Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay Banthiya fulfils the conditions specified under various
provisions of the Act and are considered independent of the management.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

No company has become/ceased to be a Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate of the Company.

DEPOSITS

The Companyhas not accepted any deposits during the year under review.

CHANGEIN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company.
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The Company has constituted an Audit Committee under the provisions of Section 177 of the
Act. The said Committee comprises of three members namely, Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay
Banthiya, both Independent Non-Executive Directors and Mr. Shiv Kumar Jatia, Managing
Director. Dr. Lalit Bhasin chairs the Audit Committee meetings and the quorum for the
Committee meetings is two members.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year under review were duly
accepted by the Board.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay Banthiya Independent Non-executive Directors, have submitted
their declaration that they continue to conform to the criteria set out for an independent director
under Section 149(6) of the Act and the said declarations were taken on record by the Board in
its meeting held on 10" April, 2019. Reliance was placed on these confirmations/declarations
while ascertaining the adequacy of number of independent directors for the purposes of
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. Further, the Board is of the opinion that
Dr. Lalit Bhasin and Mr. Sanjay Banthiya fulfils the conditions specified under various
provisions of the Act and are considered independent of the management.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

No company has become/ceased to be a Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate of the Company.

DEPOSITS

The Companyhas not accepted any deposits during the year under review.

CHANGEIN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company.
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DISCLOSURES

a) Risk ManagementPolicy/Systems

During the year underreview, the Board in its meeting held on 22° May, 2018, had evaluated
the Risk Management Systems existing in the Company,in the light of the Risk Management
Policy of the Company, and noted that these are working effectively. Further, the Board noted
that the Companyis conscious of the risk factors and is confident ofmeeting the challenges.

Subsequent to the year under review, the Board in its meeting held on 25% May, 2019,

reviewed the Risk Management Policy and noted that the risks set-out in the said policy
continues to be relevant, hence it does not require any up-dation. Further, in the light of the
said policy the Board evaluated the Risk Management Systems existing in the Company and
noted that such systems are working effectively.

b) Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly approved and adopted a Whistle Blower
Policy which provides a mechanism for the directors and employees of the Companyto report
any violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or any instance of actual or suspected fraud
or unethical behavior to the competent authority, i.e. the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
During the year under review, no case was reported under this mechanism nor anyone was
denied access to the Chairman, Audit Committee. The said policy is annexed aas Annexure Cc
and forms part of this Report.

c) Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013

The Companyis not required to constitute an Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment ofWomen at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Further,

no case was filed with the Local Complaints Committee, constituted by the District Officer
under Section 6(1) of the said Act.

d) Internal Financial Controls

The Company has effective and adequate internal financial controls and systems which are
operating effectively and which ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information.
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ANNEXURE A
FORM NO. MGT9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2019

of Leading Hotels Limited
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management &

Administration) Rules, 2014]

 

 

 

 

 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I CIN U55101DL2005PLC143141

I Registration Date 01.12.2005

Ti Name of the Company Leading Hotels Limited

IV Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares

V Address of the Registered Office & contactdetails INo.5, E-Block, Local Shopping Centre,

Masjid Moth, Greater Kailash-II, New
Delhi-110 048
 

     VI Whetherlisted company No

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar &
VII Transfer Agent,if any. INA.
 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Companyshall be stated)

 

 

S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the |% to total turnover of the
products / services product/service Company

1 Hotel Operations* 55101 N.A.      
 

*The Companyhas not yet commenced commercial operations

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

 

 

       

S. NAME AND CIN / GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICA
No. ADDRESS SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES BLE

OF THE ASSOCIATE HELD SECTION
COMPANY

1 Asian Hotels L55101DL1980PLC011037 Holding AHNL holds 2(46)
(North) 100% equity in
Limited Fineline
(AHNL) Hospitality &

Consultancy Pte,
Ltd., Mauritius

2 Fineline N.A. Holding FHCPLholds 2(46)
Hospitality & 80% equity in
Consultancy Lexon Hotel
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Pte. Ltd., Ventures Ltd.,
Mauritius Mauritius
(FHCPL)

3 Lexon Hotel N.A. Holding Lexon holds 2(46)
Ventures Ltd., 99.76% equity
Mauritius in Leading
(Lexon) Hotels Limited
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
A) Category-wise Shareholding

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders year[As on 01.04.2018] year[As on 31.03.2019] Cha

nge
Demat Physi Total % of Demat Physi Total % of duri

cal Total cal Total ng
Shares Shares the

year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF 9,960 0 9,960 0.05 9,960 0 9,960 0,05 0

b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0

c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 0
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0} 0
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total
(A)(1): 9,960 0 9,960 0.05 9,960 0 9,960 0.05 0

(2) Foreign

a) Individuals
(NRIs/Foreign

Individuals) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
'b) Bodies
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B. Public
Shareholding         

 

 

       

Pte. Ltd., Ventures Ltd.,
Mauritius Mauritius
(FHCPL)

3 Lexon Hotel N.A. Holding Lexon holds 2(46)
Ventures Ltd., 99.76% equity
Mauritius in Leading
(Lexon) Hotels Limited
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
A) Category-wise Shareholding
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
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e) Venture Capital
Funds
 

f) Insurance
Companies
 

g) FIIs
 

h) Foreign
Venture Capital

Funds
 

i) Others (specify)
 

Sub-total (B)(1):-
 

2. Non-

Institutions
 

a) Bodies Corp.
 

i) Indian 40,000 40,000 0.19 40,000 40,000 0.19
 

il) Overseas
 

b) Individuals
 

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

40 40 40 40
 

ii) Individual

shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1

lakh

 

c) Others (specify)
  Sub-total (B)(2):-  40,000  40  40,040  0.19  40,000  40  40,040  0.19  
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Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)()+
(B)(2) 40,000 40 40,040 0.19 40,000 40 40,040 0.19 0

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total
(A+B+C) 2,08,76,889 40 2,08,76,929 100.00 2,08,76,889 40 |2,08,76,929 100,00 0

B) Shareholding of Promoters

S. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholdingat the end of the year %
No. Name year (01.04.2018) (31.03.2019) change

in
No.of % of “of Shares No. of % of total “of Shares share
Shares total Pledged / Shares Sharesof Pledged / holding

Sharesof encumbered the encumbered during
the to total company to total the

company shares shares year

} Shiv Kumar Jatia 9,900 0.05 0 9,900 0.05 0 0

2 ArchanaJatia 60 0.00 0 60 0.00 0 0

exon Hotel
3 Ventures Ltd, 0

Mauritius 2,08,26,929 99.76 0 2,08,26,929 99.76 0

Asian Hotels ,
4 North) Limited 0 0 0 0 0 0 0         
 

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

THERE IS NO CHANGEIN THE PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING

 

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding

 

      

the year during the year
No. of shares % of total |No. of shares %of total

shares of the shares of

company the
company

At the beginning ofthe year 2,08,36,889 99.81 2,08,36,889 99.81  
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Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc)

        Atthe end of the year 2,08,36,889 99,81 2,08,36,889 99.81
 

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (other than Directors, Promoters and Holdersof

GDRsand ADRs):

 

  

 

 

 

  

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative
Decrease Shareholding during

in the year (01.04.2018 to
sharehold 31.03.2019)

No. of shares %oftotal ing No. of %oftotal
at the shares of shares |shares of the

beginning the Company
(01.04.2018)/e Company
nd of the year
(31.03.2019)

RSJ Developers No
Pvt.Ltd. 40000 0.19] 1.04,2018/ 0 change 40000 0.19

31.03.2019 during
the year

No
Deepak Gupta 10 0| 1.04.2018/ 0 change 10 0

31.03.2019 during
the year

No
1.04.2018/ |. change

Narottam Sharma 10 0 31.03.2019 0 during 10 0

the year

No
. 1.04.2018/ change

Raj KumarJha 10 0 31.03.2019 0 during 10 0

the year         
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

 

Name Shareholding Date Increas |Reason |Cumulative
e/Decre Shareholding
ase in during the year
shareho (01.04.2018 to
Iding 31.03.2019)        
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No. of shares |[% of total No. of |% of total
at the |shares of the shares jshares of
beginning Company the
(01.04.2018)/e Company
nd of the year
(31.03.2019)

No
. . 1.04.2018/ change

Shiv Kumar Jatia 9900 0.05 31.03.2019 0 during 9900 0.05

the year

No
hange1.04.2018/ 0) oat

Anita Thapar 10 0 31.03.2019 during 10 0

the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS-

(In Rupees)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits /Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount 1511140092 814200000 Nil 2325340092

it) Interest due but not paid 13686224 40088519 Nil 53774743

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - Nil ”

Total(i+ii+iii) 1524826316 854288519 Nil 2379114835

Change in indebtedness during the
financial year

* Addition 14109506 1061531245 Nil 1075640751

* Reduction 34871397 799747515 Nil 834618912

Net Change (20761891) 261783730 Nil 241021839

Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount 1478114428 1094825000 Nil 2572939428

ii) Interest due but not paid 25949997 21247249 Nil 47197246

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - Nil -

Total (i+ii+tii) 1504064425 1116072249 Nil 2620136674       
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-FEME—DIRECTORS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AND/OR-MANAGER

S.No. [Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD Name ofJMD Total
Amount

Mr. Shiv Kumar |Mr. Tapesh
Jatia Bharat Wumar

Goenka
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 0 0 0
1961

(b) Value of perquisites under Section
17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0 0 0

c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 0 0 0

3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0

4 Commission
- as % of profit 0 0 0
- others

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0

Total (A) 0 0 0

Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A. N.A,

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration (Nameof Directors Total Amount

1 IndependentDirectors Lalit Bhasin Sanjay Banthiya

Fee for attending board and 90,000 70,000 1,60,000
committee meetings

Comunission 0 0 0

Others, please specify 0 0 0

Total (1) 90,000 70,000 .1,60,000

2  |Other Non-Executive Directors Amritesh Jatia Anita Thapar

Fee for attending board and
committee meetings 0 30,000 30,000

Commission 0 0 0     
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Others, please specify 0 0 0
 

 
 

Total(2) 0 30,000 30,000
Total Managerial Remuneration

(B)=(1+2) 1,90,000
      Overall Ceiling as per the Act#
#Non-executive directors were paid only the sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board or committees thereof during the

financial year 2018-19.

 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD /

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGER / WTD

8. No. Particulars of Remuneration CS —- Ms. CFO —- Mr. Total
Rabab Zaidi Ajay Kumar

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 4,78,332 10,12,350 14,90,682
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 0 0 0
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4 Commission 0 0 0

- as % of profit 0 ) 0

- others, specify 0 0 0

5 Others, please specify ) 0 0

Total 4,78,332 10,12,350 14,90,682     
 

VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/punishment/compoundingof offences during the year ended 31March, 2019.
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_ ANNEXURE..2....

LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy

Preamble

 

Remuneration and Evaluation Policy ofLeading Hotels Limited is designed

to attract, motivate and retain human resources, creating a competitive work environment,

thus improving productivity, encouraging initiatives leading to personal growth; team work

“by inculcating a sense of belongingness and involvement, and also by laying down an

appropriate evaluation and reward mechanism.

The Nomination,

Definitions

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time

to time.

“Board”or “Board of Directors” means collective body of directors of the Company.

“Company” means Leading Hotels Limited.

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Independent Director” meansa director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Act.

“Key Managerial Personnel”or “KMP” means:

i. The CEO or the Managing Director;

ii. Whole-time Director(s);

iii. Chief Finaricial Officer; ©

iv. Company Secretary; and

vy. Such other person as maybe prescribed,

2”or “Committee” means the Nomination and
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committe

as constituted from time to
Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the Company,

time, in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act.

“Policy” means this policy namely Nomination, Remuneration & Evaluation Policy,

“SMP” means employees of the Company who are

who are one level below the executive director viz.“Senior Management Personnel” or

all Vice Presidents, General Managers andmembers of its core management team

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary,

Division Heads.

Applicable regulatory provisions

This Policy has been formulated for due compliance of Section 178 of the Act, read with

rules framed there-under.

The Policy & its applicability

This Policy, as formulated below, applies to the Board of Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior ManagementPersonnelof the Company.

ee
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’ To recomm

To carry out any other function as is m

Purpose

The primary objective of

the nomination, remunera

Company endeavoursto atta

and leadership traits amongstits Directo

ework and set benchmarks for

ctors, KMP and SMP. The

professional acumen

the Policy is to provide a fram

tion and evaluation of the Dire

in an ideal mix of merit, experience,

rs, KMP and SMP.

Accountabilities

The Board delegates the primary responsibility of assessing and selecting candidates

to hold the office of Director, KMP and SMP to the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee which inter-alia makes nominations / recommendations for appointment

by the Board.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration. Cominittee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible:

me directors, and who may be
e qualified to beco

ance with the criteria laid down inTo identify persons who ar
tions in accord

appointed in senior management posi

the policy;

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence ofa director,

y for the Directors / KMP / SMP so appointed /

composition of remuneration is reasonable and

ate them and comprises of an ideal balance of

propriate performance

to recommend

To recommend a remuneration polic

re-appointed ensuring that level and

sufficient to attract, retain and motiv

fixed and variable compensation that is linked to meeting ap

benchmarks, and within the frame work of the said policy,

remuneration for such personsfrom time to time;

luation of performance of the independent directors, such
To formulatecriteria for eva

ding the directors being evaluated);
evaluation is to be done by the Board (exclu

ance of the non-independentdirectors
To formulate criteria for evaluation of perform

be done by the independent directors
and the Board as a whole, such evaluation is to

exclusively in their separate meeting;

ion ofthe Chairman’s

ly in their separate meeting taking into

non-executive directors,

To formulate criteria for evaluat performance, to be doneby the

independent directors exclusive
account the

views of executive directors and

end to the Board the appointment and removal of directors and senior

management;

Succession planning for Directors, KMP and SMP,and overseeing the transition

process;

aridated by the Board from time to time and /

or required by the statute or any amendment or modification therein, from timeto

time;

bed a
—————

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

’ To recomm

To carry out any other function as is m

Purpose

The primary objective of

the nomination, remunera

Company endeavoursto atta

and leadership traits amongstits Directo

ework and set benchmarks for

ctors, KMP and SMP. The

professional acumen

the Policy is to provide a fram

tion and evaluation of the Dire

in an ideal mix of merit, experience,

rs, KMP and SMP.

Accountabilities

The Board delegates the primary responsibility of assessing and selecting candidates

to hold the office of Director, KMP and SMP to the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee which inter-alia makes nominations / recommendations for appointment

by the Board.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration. Cominittee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible:

me directors, and who may be
e qualified to beco

ance with the criteria laid down inTo identify persons who ar
tions in accord

appointed in senior management posi

the policy;

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence ofa director,

y for the Directors / KMP / SMP so appointed /

composition of remuneration is reasonable and

ate them and comprises of an ideal balance of

propriate performance

to recommend

To recommend a remuneration polic

re-appointed ensuring that level and

sufficient to attract, retain and motiv

fixed and variable compensation that is linked to meeting ap

benchmarks, and within the frame work of the said policy,

remuneration for such personsfrom time to time;

luation of performance of the independent directors, such
To formulatecriteria for eva

ding the directors being evaluated);
evaluation is to be done by the Board (exclu

ance of the non-independentdirectors
To formulate criteria for evaluation of perform

be done by the independent directors
and the Board as a whole, such evaluation is to

exclusively in their separate meeting;

ion ofthe Chairman’s

ly in their separate meeting taking into

non-executive directors,

To formulate criteria for evaluat performance, to be doneby the

independent directors exclusive
account the

views of executive directors and

end to the Board the appointment and removal of directors and senior

management;

Succession planning for Directors, KMP and SMP,and overseeing the transition

process;

aridated by the Board from time to time and /

or required by the statute or any amendment or modification therein, from timeto

time;

bed a
—————

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

’ To recomm

To carry out any other function as is m

Purpose

The primary objective of

the nomination, remunera

Company endeavoursto atta

and leadership traits amongstits Directo

ework and set benchmarks for

ctors, KMP and SMP. The

professional acumen

the Policy is to provide a fram

tion and evaluation of the Dire

in an ideal mix of merit, experience,

rs, KMP and SMP.

Accountabilities

The Board delegates the primary responsibility of assessing and selecting candidates

to hold the office of Director, KMP and SMP to the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee which inter-alia makes nominations / recommendations for appointment

by the Board.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration. Cominittee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible:

me directors, and who may be
e qualified to beco

ance with the criteria laid down inTo identify persons who ar
tions in accord

appointed in senior management posi

the policy;

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence ofa director,

y for the Directors / KMP / SMP so appointed /

composition of remuneration is reasonable and

ate them and comprises of an ideal balance of

propriate performance

to recommend

To recommend a remuneration polic

re-appointed ensuring that level and

sufficient to attract, retain and motiv

fixed and variable compensation that is linked to meeting ap

benchmarks, and within the frame work of the said policy,

remuneration for such personsfrom time to time;

luation of performance of the independent directors, such
To formulatecriteria for eva

ding the directors being evaluated);
evaluation is to be done by the Board (exclu

ance of the non-independentdirectors
To formulate criteria for evaluation of perform

be done by the independent directors
and the Board as a whole, such evaluation is to

exclusively in their separate meeting;

ion ofthe Chairman’s

ly in their separate meeting taking into

non-executive directors,

To formulate criteria for evaluat performance, to be doneby the

independent directors exclusive
account the

views of executive directors and

end to the Board the appointment and removal of directors and senior

management;

Succession planning for Directors, KMP and SMP,and overseeing the transition

process;

aridated by the Board from time to time and /

or required by the statute or any amendment or modification therein, from timeto

time;

bed a
—————

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

’ To recomm

To carry out any other function as is m

Purpose

The primary objective of

the nomination, remunera

Company endeavoursto atta

and leadership traits amongstits Directo

ework and set benchmarks for

ctors, KMP and SMP. The

professional acumen

the Policy is to provide a fram

tion and evaluation of the Dire

in an ideal mix of merit, experience,

rs, KMP and SMP.

Accountabilities

The Board delegates the primary responsibility of assessing and selecting candidates

to hold the office of Director, KMP and SMP to the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee which inter-alia makes nominations / recommendations for appointment

by the Board.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration. Cominittee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible:

me directors, and who may be
e qualified to beco

ance with the criteria laid down inTo identify persons who ar
tions in accord

appointed in senior management posi

the policy;

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence ofa director,

y for the Directors / KMP / SMP so appointed /

composition of remuneration is reasonable and

ate them and comprises of an ideal balance of

propriate performance

to recommend

To recommend a remuneration polic

re-appointed ensuring that level and

sufficient to attract, retain and motiv

fixed and variable compensation that is linked to meeting ap

benchmarks, and within the frame work of the said policy,

remuneration for such personsfrom time to time;

luation of performance of the independent directors, such
To formulatecriteria for eva

ding the directors being evaluated);
evaluation is to be done by the Board (exclu

ance of the non-independentdirectors
To formulate criteria for evaluation of perform

be done by the independent directors
and the Board as a whole, such evaluation is to

exclusively in their separate meeting;

ion ofthe Chairman’s

ly in their separate meeting taking into

non-executive directors,

To formulate criteria for evaluat performance, to be doneby the

independent directors exclusive
account the

views of executive directors and

end to the Board the appointment and removal of directors and senior

management;

Succession planning for Directors, KMP and SMP,and overseeing the transition

process;

aridated by the Board from time to time and /

or required by the statute or any amendment or modification therein, from timeto

time;

bed a
—————



3.10 To perform such other finctions as may be necessary OF appropriate for the

performance ofits duties.

4, Appointment of Directors / KMP {SMP

n Committee while selecting a candidate for

nomination to the Board shall first and fore-most evaluate the candidate’s contribution

in enhancing the competencies of the Board as a whole, When recommending a

candidate for nomination for the office ofdirector, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee shall:

e assess the appointee in the back drop of a range of criteria which among others

include his/her qualification, merit, experience, professional acumen and

leadership skills, industry experience, and other qualities required to operate

successfully in that position, and the benefits ofthe diversity in the Board, he/she

brings;

e consider the extent to which appointee is, likely t

effectiveness of the Board while working constructive

thus enhancetheeffectiveness ofthe Company’s business;

@ consider further the nature of existing positions held by the appointee including

directorships or other relationships and the impact these could have onthe

appointee’s ability to exercise independentjudgement, and
-

e assess whether the appointee meets the statutory obligations, more so if the

nomination is for the position of an independent director, and ensure that his/her

‘sed either due to any disability
independence is not comproml

arising out of the

requirements of Section 149 read with the rules framed there-under and Schedule

IV to the Act or otherwise.

4.1 The Nomination and Remuneratio

contribute to the overall

ly with the existing directors

4.2 While selecting a candidate for a position of KMP / SMP, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee shall:
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experience, professional acumen and

d other qualities required to operate
o assess the appointee in the back drop 0

include his/her qualification, merit,

leadership skills, industry experience, an:

successfully in the position considered for.

Thecriteria discussed above may be listed as:

Academic profile

Professional qualifications

Overall experience

Experience in diverse organisations/ industry

Demonstrable leadership skills

Communication, inter-personal

Ability to handle conflicting situations a

Commitment to high standards of governance,

probity
Commitment to the promotion of equal

Commitment to continuous learning an

o the extent to which appointee is likely to contribute to achieve the overall

ing constructively in tandem with peers.
objectives of the Company, work:

pate—
nr

and representational skills

nd conflict management

ethics, personal integrity and

opportunities for all

d professional development
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6.

‘61

6.2

Letters of Appointment

h Director / KMP / SMP shall be issued a letter of appoint
Fac.

terms of appointmentand the role assigned in the Company.

ment detailing the

Remuneration of Directors, KMPand SMP

Guiding Principles

1e is that the quantum and composition of remuneration shall be

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the appointee as Director,

KMP or SMP, and shall be commensurate to the academic and professional

qualifications, overall experience, and the responsibilities the appointee is expected fo

shoulder, Needless to say the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall also

keep in mind the statutory provisions and limiting factors therein while deciding the

remuneration of its Directors.

The guiding princip

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall determine remuneration for

Directors, KMP and SMP of the Company individually, primarily taking into account

the factors listed in para 4.2 above as also the industry norms, prevailing business

environment, financial health of the Company, extant regulatory guidelines or

restrictions. ©

Remuneration Structure

e to the directors of the Company and to each one of

ecutive director of the Company are

les framed there-
The overall remuneration payabl

the managing / whole-time director and non-ex

governed by the provisions of Section 197 and 198 of the Act, mu

under and ScheduleV to the said Act.

Managing Director / Whole-time Director

As the Company is in a nascent stage, both the Managing Director and Joint

Managing Director have been appointed without any remuneration for a term ofthree

years each.

ector and/or the
the remuneration package of the Managing Dir

perquisites and
ave three components namely, salary,

Iculated in terms of Section 198 ofthe Act.

However,in the future,

whole time directors shall h.

commission on net profit as ca

a) Salary (Base salary as fixed compensation)

Ought to be competitive and reflective of the individual’s role, responsibility

and experience, usually reviewed on an annual basis based on the overall

operational & financial performance and financial health ofthe Company.

b) Perquisites

Benefits like housing accommodation or allowance in liew thereof, employer's

contribution to provident fund, gratuity, leave travel assistance, medical

reimbursement, company car / telephone etc. which are normally part of

remuneration packagein line with the marketpractice.

fas
———
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under and ScheduleV to the said Act.

Managing Director / Whole-time Director

As the Company is in a nascent stage, both the Managing Director and Joint

Managing Director have been appointed without any remuneration for a term ofthree

years each.

ector and/or the
the remuneration package of the Managing Dir

perquisites and
ave three components namely, salary,

Iculated in terms of Section 198 ofthe Act.

However,in the future,

whole time directors shall h.

commission on net profit as ca

a) Salary (Base salary as fixed compensation)
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b) Perquisites
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remuneration packagein line with the marketpractice.
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6.4

_ The Nomination and Remuneration Comm

sitting fee payableto the otherdirectors.

c) Commission on nef profit (Variable compensation linked to profit)

A commission on profit not exceeding a specified percentage of net profit as

calculated in terms of Section 198 of the Act for the concerned financial year is

paid which acts as performance linked variable remuneration.

ittee may in its discretion, structure any

portion of remuneration as rewards linked to corporate and individual performance,

fulfilment of specified targets or the attainment of certain financialor other objectives

set by the Board. The amount payable is determined by the Committee, based on

performance against pre-determined financial or non-financial metrics.

Non-executive Directors

executive directors. However, in
Presently, no remuneration is being paid to the non-

dependent directors collectively
the future, all non-executive directors including the in

may be paid remuneration up to an amount not exceeding 1% ofthe net profit of the

Companyas calculated in terms of Section 198 ofthe Act for the concerned financial

year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee may set any limit beyond

which any such director may not be entitled for remuneration within the overall limit

of 1% ofthe net profit collectively for all such directors. The remuneration payable to

individual directors may vary within the limits specified above, based on their

individual performanceevaluation.

executive directors are only entitled to, and are being paid

s of the Board and Committees thereof. The

d the amount as prescribed under the Act from

hall not be less than the

In the meantime, the non-

sitting fees for attending the meeting

sitting fee thus payable shall not excee

time to time. Thesitting fee paid to the independentdirectors s

by the Board based on the

Committee made in view of

oned in para 6.1 above.

The remuneration payable to the KMP shall be decided

recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration

the factorslisted in para 4.2 and guiding principles menti

MP shall be decided based on the factors listed in
The remuneration payable to the S

ra 6.1 above and in overall
para 4.2 and guiding principles mentioned in pa

consonancewith this Policy.

Evaluation of Directors / KMP / SMP

The evaluation of the Directors, KMP and SMP of the Company shall be conducted

annually.

of persons belonging to each of the
The criteria for evaluating the performance

e listed below:
categories namely, Directors, KMPand SMPar

Chairman

Leadership abilities

Stewarding the Board and shareholders’ meetings

Ensuring dissemination of timely, regular and a

the Board and the shareholders

e Whether he encourages other Boar

dequate material information to

d members to share their views

abd
et
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Moderation of conflicting views

Conducting meetings in an

representation to all at the mee

proceedings

un-biased manner,

tings as well as while recordi

Managing Director / Whole-time Director

- Adherence of internal controls systems

- Strategic planning aimedat sustainab

Leadership abilities

Contribution to define Corporate Objectives

Achievements vis-a-vis Corporate Objectives

Overall operational and financial performanceofthe Company

Mitigation of significant risks

Corporate Governance and Legal Compliance Matrix

nation of material information to the Board |

Timely, regular and adequate dissemi

Communication ofexpectations and concerns with KMP & SMP

le growth of the Company

Independent Directors / Other Non-executive Directors

- Contribution towards enhancing Board's competency

Leadership abilities

Contribution towards defining Corporate Objectives and their achievement

Contribution towards mitigation of significant risks and strengthening internal

contro! systems

Contribution towards strengthening Corporate Governance and Legal Compliance

environment

Contribution towards strategic planning for the growth of the Company
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tings and participation there-at

f all stakeholders’ interest
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Ability to lead his team
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Mitigation of significant ri
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Maintaining Governance, Legal Comp
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sks pertaining to the functional area

edures and internal controls systems

liance environmentand ethical behaviour

Constantly assess, evaluate and upgrade existing policies, structures and

procedures to meet future challenges
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10.

‘exclusively in their separate me

. Evaluation on the ‘aforesaid

Directors for the Managing /

“e Could the Board visualize significant ris

Commitment to continuous learning and professional development for self and

tearm members

« Ability to work constructively in tandem with peers

valuation of the Chairman’s performance shall be done by the independent directors

eting taking into account the views of executive

based on the relevant parameters detailed
directors and non-executive directors,

above.

be conducted by the Independent
parameters will

Non-independent
Whole-time Director and each of the

Directors in a separate meeting of the Independent Directors.

The Board will evaluate each of the Independent Directors on the aforesaid

parameters. However, the Independent Director being evaluated at a given timeshall

not participate in the discussions at therelevant time.

Evaluation of the Board

The Independent Directors shall evaluate the functioning of the Board annually in

ters for evaluating the Board shall be as under:
- their separate meeting. The parame!

e Could the Board lay down the Corporate Objectives olearly and effectively?

direction for growth foreseeing the future
« Could the Board provide a distinct

trends in the industry?
ks and future challenges? _

“Could the Board ensure achievement of annual targets and projected financial

results / performance?

Could the Board providefres

Could the Board plan strategically for the sustaine

Could the Board ensure Board diversity? .

Could the Board ensure compliance with Corporate Governance, Company's

Policies and Code of Conductatall levels?

h impetus for accelerated growth?

d growth of the Company?

Removal

In case a director, KMP or SMP suffers fr

Act or under any other statute or regulation

the Code of Conduct or any other Policy of the Company, the Committee may

recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, fo remove 4 Director,

KMP or SMP subject to a fair and equitable opportunity being provided to the said

person to explain his position.

om any disqualification mentioned in the

s: or under the Articles of Association or

Retirement

The Director, KMP and SMP shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act

However, the Board shall have the

and the prevailing policies of the Company.

discretion to extend or retain the services of such Director, KMP or SMPin the same

position and remuneration or otherwise even after his attaining the age of retirement,

for the benefit of the Company.
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11.

12.

13.

‘Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee & conductofits

meetings

The Committee, as constituted by the Board, comp

executive Directors and one (1) Non-executive Director. The Committee is chaired by

the Non-executive Director. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the

Committee present at the meeting elects one amongst themselves fo act as the

Chairman of the meeting.

rises of two (2) Independent Non-

ee meets as and when required to attend to its business and that any two

the Committee meetings.

d signed by the Chairman of the

are tabled at the subsequent

ed before the Board meeting

The Committ

mernbersconstitute a quorum for

Proceedings of all meetings are minuted an

Committee. Minutes of the Committee meetings

firmation and are also plac
Committee meeting for con

held immediately after such Committee meetings.

ns relating to the conduct of the Board meetings of the Company

Other provisio
is to the Committee meetings.

applies mutatis mutand

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate,to be present

at the meetings of the Committee.

Review and Amendment

ew, amendorre-state this Policy as and when it

supplementthis Policy by issuing guidelines,

forits better implementation.
The Committee or the Board may revi

deems necessary. The Committee may

procedures, formats, reporting mechanism etc.

Deviations from the Policy

The Board, in extraordinary circumstances and on the recommendations of the

Committee, may take decisions in deviation of this policy in the interests of the

Company.
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ANNEXURE.....<.

LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Preface

in a fair and transparent manner by adhering
The Company is committed to conductits business

integrity and ethical behavior.
to the highest standards ofprofessionalism, honesty,

Towards this end, the Companyhas framed and adopted a code of conduct, which lays down the

principles and standards that should be followed while pursuing the business ofthe Company by

its directors and senior management personnel. Needless to say, it is of paramount importance

* that all concerned should follow the said Code of Conductatall times, Any violation of the said

hical behavior would be a
Code ofConduct or any instance of actual or suspected fraud or unet

matter of serious concern for the Company. While the directors and employees of the Company

are encouraged to voice their genuine concerns about such instances by bringing relevant facts to

the attention of the competent authority, it is essential that adequate safeguards are in place to

protect the identity and interests of persons voicing such concems, and that they are not

subjected to victimization for the same.

Section 177(9) of the Companies Act; 2013 (the Act), read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 mandates every listed company, companies

accepting deposits from the public, and companies which have borrowed money from banks and

_ public financial institutions in excess of Rs. 50 crore, to establish a vigil mechanism fortheir

directorsand employees to report their genuine concerns regarding the situations discussed in the

forgoing paragraph, and providing for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors or

employees accessing the vigil mechanism.

Further, Schedule IV to the Act read with Section 149(8) thereof, enj oins upon the independent

directors of the Company to ascertain and ensure that the Company has an adequate and

functional vigil mechanism to which any concern about unethical behavior, actual or suspected

frauds or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct can be reported by any director or employee

and to ensure that interests of such director or employee are not prejudicially affected on account

of suchreporting.

d “LHL Whistle Blower Policy” has
_ Accordingly, the following policy which shall be calle

come intoforce from the date of its
been formulated to meet the aforesaid requirements and shall

adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Objectives

establish and provide a mechanism for the directors and

rt any violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or any

hical behavior, ensuring that such mechanism

tion ofsuch directors or employees who avail

fata
ee

The objective of this policy is to

employees of the Company to repo

instance of actual or suspected fraud or unet

incorporates adequate safeguards against victimiza

of this mechanism.
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_ Accordingly, the following policy which shall be calle

come intoforce from the date of its
been formulated to meet the aforesaid requirements and shall

adoption by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Objectives

establish and provide a mechanism for the directors and

rt any violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or any

hical behavior, ensuring that such mechanism

tion ofsuch directors or employees who avail
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The objective of this policy is to

employees of the Company to repo
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of this mechanism.
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Accordingly, this policy sets out a functional vigil mechanism to receive and investigate into any

genuine concern reported by any employee or director in relation to any violation of the

Company’s Code of Conduct or any instance of actual or suspected fraud or unethical behavior,

and after conclusion ofthe investigation, take requisite corrective and penal action. The policy

provides for direct access to the Chairman, Audit Comimittec.

quate safeguards against victimization of such

ging secure and responsible use ofthis policy.-Simultaneously, this policy also provides for ade

e personal scores or with anpersons who avail ofthis mechanism thus encoura

However, this policy should not be misused by anyone to settl

intention to harass colleagues by raising malicious or unfounded allegations.

Applicability

This Policy shall be applicable once approved by the Board of Directo

hosted on theofficial web-site of the Company.

rs of the Company and

The Board of Directors reserves the right to amend or modify this Policy in whole orin part, at

any time without assigning any reason whatsoever.

Definitions

The following expressions used hereinafter shall have the meaning as defined below:

* means the Audit Committee as constituted by the Board. of Directors of
a) “Audit Committee

the Company from time to time in accordance with Section 177 of the Act. .

b) “Board ofDirectors”or “Board” means the collective body of directors of the Company.

“Code” means the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel as

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Companyfrom timeto time.

d) “Company” means Leading Hotels Limited.

e) “Competent Authority” means the Chairman ofthe Audit Committee.

f) “Employee” means every employee of the Company, wherever working, including the

directorsin the employment of the Company.

g) “Improper Activity” means anyactivity by an Employee of the Companythat is undertaken in

ror not that act is within the scope ofhis or her
performanceofhis orherofficial duty, whethe

employment, and thatis:.

« in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct,

* » abuseofauthority for personal benefit or the benefit of third party,

ea suspected or actual manipulation of company data/record, or accounting or financial mis-

reporting,

e pilferage of confidential / proprietary information, or unauthorized disclosure of information

to third party,

fatt —
—_—
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ea suspected or actual criminal offence, corruption, bribery,theft, conversion or misuse of the

Company’s property or fraud,

ean activity involving gross misconduct, and any other unethical, biased, favoured or

imprudentact.

he working of the Company and are purely of personal
Activities which have no nexus to t

he definition of Improper Activity.
nature are specifically excluded from

” means any communication made in good faith that discloses or
h) “Protected Disclosure !

on that may evidence an “Improper Activity”,
demonstrates informati

i) “Subject” means a person against or in relation to whom a Protected Disclosure has been

made or evidence gathered during the course of an investigation.

j) “Whistle Blower” means someone who makes a Protected Disclosure under this Policy.’

4, Eligibility.

make Protected Disclosures under
ctors of the Company are eligibleto

the activities or matters concerningAll Employees and Dire
d Disclosures should relate only to

the Policy. The Protecte

the Company. |. :

5, Guiding Principles.

a) The Whistle Blower and / or the person(s) processing the Protected Disclosure are not

subjected to victimization.

b) Complete confidentiality as to the identity of the Whistle Blower is maintained,

c) Opportunity of being heard is provided to the Subject of Protected Disclosure.

d) -Evidence of Protected Disclosure is not concealed and appropriate action including

disciplinary action is taken in case anyone destroys or conceals evidence of the Protected

Disclosure made or to be made.

6. Role of WhistleBlower

a) The Whistle Blower is not required to conduct any investigation on his own.

b) The Whistle Blowerdoes not have any right to participatein the investigation.

with by the Competent Authority.
c) Protected Disclosure will be appropriately dealt

d) The Whistle Blower shall have a right to be informed ofthe disposition ofhis disclosure

except for overriding legal or other reasons,

7, Disqualifications

e Blowers will be accorded protection from any kind of unfair treatment/

s protection will warrant disciplinary action.

fab —

. re
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licy would not mean protection from disciplinary action arising
b) Protection under this po

legations made by a Whistle Blower mowingit to be false or
out of false or bogus al

- bogus or with a malafide intention.
which have been

c) Whistle Blowers, who make three or more Protected Disclosures,

Procedure

a)

b)
: Authority and the Whistle Blower,

directly or indirectly relates to the C

‘Hindi, and should provide a cle

agsue / concem raised/soughtto be raised by the Whistle Blo

subsequently found to be mala-fide, frivolous, baseless, malicious or reported otherwise

than in goodfaith, will be disqualified from reporting further Protected Disclosures under

this policy and the Audit Committee may take suitable action against such persons

including reprimand.

isclosure should be attached to a letter bearing the identity of the

and Location, and should be in a closed /

Authority which should be super-

‘The Protected D
Whistle Blower ic. Name, Employee Number

secured / sealed envelope addressed to the Competent

scribed “Protected Disclosure”.
a conflict of interest between the Competent

If the Whistle Blower believes that there is

directly or indirectly or the Protected Disclosure

ompetent Authority, he may send his Protected ,.

ee of the Board of Directors ofthe Company.
Disclosure directly to the Audit Committ

Disclosure shall not be entertained.
Anonymous or pseudonymous Protected

Protected Disclosure should either be typed or written in legible hand writing in English or

ar understanding of the Improper Activity involved or

wer, It must contain as much

Ip in initial assessment and investigation.

d not speculative or in the naturé of a

rmation as possible to allow for

relevant information as possible and should he

Protected Disclosures should be factual an

conclusion, and should contain as much specific info

proper assessmentofthe nature and extent of the concern.

Investigation

a)

b)

All Protected Disclosures reported under this Policy will be thoroughly investigated by

the Competent Authority or the Audit Committee, as applicable, in accordance with the

Authority or the Audit Committee may at its
normal procedure. The Competent

discretion, consider taking assistance of any Employee, director, third party, or external

agencyfor the purposeofinvestigation.

The decision to conduct an investigation should notbe construed as an accusation andis

he outcomeof the investigation may not
to be treated as a neutral fact-finding process. T.

support the claim/conclusion of the Whistle Blower that an Improper Activity was

committed.
The identity of the Subject will be kept

legitimate needs of law and the investigation.

Subjects will normally be informed of the allegations at the outset of a formal

investigation and have opportunities for providing theirinputs during the investigation.

h the Competent Authority or the Audit
Subjects shall have a duty to co-operate wit

Committee during the investigation to the extent that such co-operation will not

lable under the applicable laws.
compromise self-incrimination protections avai

.

pater i—
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ult with a person or persons oftheir choice, except the

Wed in the investigation and‘f) Subjects have a right to cons

ubjectsCompetent Authority, Audit Committee, other persons invo

Whistle Blower. This may involve representation including legal representation. §

shall be free at any time to engage a counsel at their own cost to represent them in the

investigation proceedings.

g) Subjects have a responsibility notto interfere with the investigation. Evidence shall not

be withheld, destroyed, or tampered with, and witnesses shall not be influenced, coached,

threatened or intimidated by the Subjects. If he/she is found indulging in any such actions

they will make themselves liable for disciplinary actions, Under no circumstances,

Subjects should compel Competent Authority to disclose the identity of the Whistle

Blower.

h) Subjects have a rightto be informedofthe outcome ofthe investigation.

lly within 45 days of the date ofreceipt ofthe
i) The investigation shall be completed norma

Protected Disclosure or such extended period as the Competent Authority may permit for

reasons to be recorded.

10. Protection

a) No unfair treatment will bz meted out to a Whistle Blower by virtue of his/her having

reported a Protected Disclosure under this Policy. The Company, as a policy, condemns

any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair employment

practice being adopted against the Whistle Blowers.
ers against’ any unfair practice. The

b) Complete protection will be given to the Whistle Blow

Company will take steps to minimize difficulties, which the Whistle Blower may

experience as a result of making the Protected Disclosure. Thus,if the Whistle Blower is

required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Company will

arrange for the Whistle Blower to receive advice about the procedureetc.

threat or intimidation of
c) The Whistle Blower shall be protected from any retaliation,

termination/suspension of service, disciplinary action, transfer, demotion, refusal of

promotion, or the like including any direct or indirect use of authority to obstruct the

Whistle Blower’s right to continue to perform his duties/functions including making

further Protected Disclosure.

d) Any other Employee assisting in the said investigation shall also be protected to the same»

extent as the Whistle Blower.

11. Decision

rity to conclude that an Improper Activity has

hall recommend to the management of the

they deem fit. It is clarified that

t as a result of the findings of
or staff

If an investigation leads the Competent Autho

been committed, the Competent Authority s

Companyto take such disciplinary or corrective action as

any disciplinary or corrective action initiated against the Subjec

an investigation pursuant to this Policy shall adhere to the applicable personnel

conduct and disciplinary procedures.

Lat K—
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12. Reporting

eceived under the policy, investigation

A quarterly report with number of complaints r
e Competent Authority before the Audit

conducted and their outcome shall be placed by th

Committee.

The Audit Committee shall have power to review any action or decision taken by the

Competent Authority.

13. Access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Whistle Blowershall always haveright to access the Chairman of the Audit Committee

as the Competent Authority is none other than the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

14, Confidentiality

hall be treated in a confidential manner

All concerns and issues raised underthis Policy s
lete, fair and effective investigation and

except to the extent (i) necessary to conduct a comp

(ii) required to be disclosed for legal or compliance reasons.

hority, Members of Audit Committee,

hall maintain complete confidentiality/

able to invite disciplinary action
The Whistle Blower, the Subject, Competent Aut

Investigators and everyone involved in the process §

secrecy of the matter. Non-adherence of confidentiality is li

as the Board may consider appropriate.-

15. Retention of documents

All Protected Disclosures in writing or documented along with the results of investigation

relating thereto shall be retained by the Companyfora minimum period of seven years.

16. Administration and Review of the Policy

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the interpretation, application, administration

and review ofthis policy. The Board is empoweredto bring about necessary changesto this

Policy, as and when required, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee.

17. Amendments to the Policy

Policy in whole or in part, at any

to the policy shall take

nd hosted on

amend or modify this

whatsoever. Any amendment

by the Board of Directors of the Company &
The Company reservesits right to

time without assigning any reason

effect from the date when approved

the Company’s website.

.

*, Odean

ee”



' DhirubhaiShah & Co LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Ath Floor, Aditya Building,
Near Sardar Patel Seva Samaj,
Mithakhalli Six Roads,Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad 380006.

 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Membersof Leading Hotels Limited

Report on the StandaloneFinancial Statements

Opinion

Wehave audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Leading Hotels

Limited (“the Company”), which comprises ofthe balance sheet as at 31st March 2019,
and the statementof Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), and the
Statement of changes in equity and statementof cash flowsfor the year then ended, and
notesto the financial statements, including a summaryof significant accountingpolicies
and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given'to us, the aforesaid standalonefinancial statements give the information required

by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and

fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed undersection
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended,(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the

state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, andits loss, total comprehensive

income,its cash flows and the changesin equity for the year ended on that date subject

to Note No. 3 on Financial Statements for non-provision of interest liability
-amounting to Rs, 7,50,13,349/- by the Company, relating to Inter Corporate
Deposits and other financial commitments, The non-provisioning of interest has
resulted in understatement ofCWIP to the extentofRs. 7,50,13,349/-.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalonefinancial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules hereunder, and we havefulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. °

‘Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

pinion on the standalonefinancial statements.
.\) I   
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
- These matters were addressed in the context of our auditof the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and wedo notprovide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicatedin our report.

 

Key Audit Matter Description Responseto Key Audit Matter
 

A. Evaluation of uncertain tax

matters

. The Company has. a material
’ uncertain income tax outstanding
‘wart AY 2016-17. The matter is

presently disputed and is being
contested in appeal. As required
the Companyhas deposited part of
the tax demand before appeal and

the matter is now pendingforfinal
order

Principal Audit Procedures

We have performed the following audit

procedures:

1. Obtained details of assessment notice|.

/ order.

2. Obtained necessary details from the

tax consultant regarding on going tax

litigations —

3. Verified whether the Company has

taken appropriate steps to defend

itself before the appellate authorities

and hasfiled necessary appeal as per

the prescribed process within the

given timelines.

 

 
B. Non-Payment/belated payment of

Interest to Bankers / Lenders

not paid/paid

amount to

Company has

belatedly

Bankers / Lenders.

interest

Payment of interest to Bankers /

Lenders in time reflects on the

health of the company apart from

the need for us to report on such

_ issues to the members,

: We have, therefore, considered

payment of interest to Bankers /

Lenders’ dues as a key audit

_ matter,  
Principal Audit Procedures

We have performed the following audit

procedures.

1. Obtained details of interest payments
to be made by companyon term loan and
inter-corporate & other deposits.

2. Evaluated the existence of internal
controls relating to compliance with

interest payments with Bankers /
Lenders.

3. Verified that whether company has
been regular in paymentofinterest dues.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business

Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not

include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and

we donot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained

during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true andfair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, includingthe Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisionsof the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true andfair view and arefree from material misstatement, whether dueto fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managementeither intends to liquidate the Companyor to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the Company’sfinancial reporting process.
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 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 

 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thoserisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal contro] relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. —

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that maycast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosuresin the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a

 



regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 

regsonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalonefinancial
statements. .

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit andsignificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of mostsignificance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

Wedraw yourattention to Note 29 to the standalone financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019. We believe that these events and conditions indicate material
uncertainty that casts doubt with respect to the ability of the Company to timely dischargeitsits
financial obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Governmentof India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
wegive in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and

4 ofthe order.

2. AS required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposesof our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Companysofaras it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow statement and Statement of Changesin

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 



d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31s
March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31St March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act; oS

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Companyandthe operating effectiveness of suchcontrols, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us:

i.the Company has disclosed the impact, wherever necessary, of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements -
Refer Note 29 to the financial statements;;

iithe Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on

long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For Dhirubhai Shah & Co LLP
CharteredAccountants

Firm’s registration number: 102511W/W100298

DMNA
Kaushik D Shah
Partner

Membership number: 016502

 

Place: New Delhi
Date:.25% May, 2019
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on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us:

i.the Company has disclosed the impact, wherever necessary, of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements -
Refer Note 29 to the financial statements;;

iithe Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
Indian Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on

long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For Dhirubhai Shah & Co LLP
CharteredAccountants

Firm’s registration number: 102511W/W100298

DMNA
Kaushik D Shah
Partner

Membership number: 016502

 

Place: New Delhi
Date:.25% May, 2019
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexurereferred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Leading Hotels Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements for

the year ended March 31, 2019, we report that:

i.(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

ii,

iii.

iv.

vi:

including quantitative details and situationoffixed assets.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us, physical verification of

fixed assets has been carried out in terms of the phased program ofverification

adopted by the company and no material discrepancies were noticed on such

verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature ofits

assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basisof

our examination of the records of the company,the title deeds of immovable

properties are held in the nameof company.

As the Companydoes not hold any inventory, paragraph3(iii) of the Order is

not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not

granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,firms, limited liability

partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section

189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus paragraphs3(iii) (a) & (b) of the Order

are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,

the company has complied with the provision of section 185 and 186 of the

companies Act, 2013 with respect to the loans and investments made.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits. Thus paragraph 3(v) of the Orderis not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and accordingto the explanation given to us, the

Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, for any of the services rendered by the

Company.  
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vii. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and onthe basis of

viii.

our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in

the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, incometax, sales tax, service tax,

duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, GST, cess and other material

statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company

with appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed

amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, GST, value

added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as on 31

March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no

material dues of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value

added tax, GST and cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate

authorities on account of any dispute as at 31st March, 2019. Followingare the

dues relating to Income Tax which are not deposited on accountof dispute:

 

 

Assessment | Demand Amount Unpaid Amount

Year Amount {in| Paidunder|under Dispute

Rs.) Dispute (in Rs.) .

(in Rs.) .

2016-17 14,03,34,724 50,01,000 13,53,33,724      
 

Based on our audit procedures the information and explanations given by the

management, weareof the opinion that, except to the summary given below, the

companyhas generally not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to

any financial institution, banks and government. There are no debenture

holders of the company.

Summary of defaults made during the year:

 

Bank Amount Due Nature Due Date
 

Yes Bank Rs. 1,23,16,166 Interest on loan 01.03.2019
 

Yes Bank Rs. 1,36,35,755  Interest on loan  01.04.2019**
 

! **Default started after the end of the financial year but material in value hence

. reported above
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ix. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not

aN
Xl,

xii,

xiii.

xiv.

XV.

raised any moneys by wayofinitial public offer or further public offer. The

term loans raised during the year have been applied forthe purposes for which

they wereraised.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by

the company or any fraud on the companybyits officers or employees has

been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, managerial

remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to

the CompaniesAct.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,

the companyis not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order

is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all the transactions

with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of

Companies Act 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in

the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on thebasis of

our examination ofthe records of the company, the companyhas not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly

convertible debenture duringthe year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on thebasis of

our examination of the records of the company, the company has not entered

into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(XV) ofthe orderis not applicable.
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xvi. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bankof India Act, 1934.

For DHIRUBHAI SHAH & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 102511W / W100298

WM,
Kaushik D Shah i :

t

\    
  

Partner
Membership number: 016502

Place: New Delhi

Date: 25th May, 2019
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Annexure - Bto the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of

Section 143 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Leading

Hotels Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of

the standalonefinancial statements of the Companyfor the year ended onthatdate.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's managementisresponsible for establishing andmaintaining internal

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls

overfinancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and

if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy

of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
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assessing the risk that a material weaknessexists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

proceduresselected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessmentof the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud or

error.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls

systemover financial reporting.
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

BALANCESHEETAS AT 31ST MARCH 2019

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC 143141

 

 

(Amountin Rs)

: As at As at

Particulars Note 31 March2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 2 1,293,680,495 1,297,710,821

Capital work-in-progress 3 2,549,137,247 2,274,936, 165

Financial assets

Other financial assets 4 168,190 , 178,906

‘Other non-currentassets 5 1,902,347 1,923,636

Total Non-current assets 3,844,888,279 3,574,749,529

Currentassets

Financial assets

Cashand cash equivalents 6 1,135,173 21,378,829

Other financial assets 7 3,071,265 2,752,996

Current tax assets 8 5,041,981 445,675

Othercurrent assets 9 23,380,938 21,469,061

Total Current assets 32,629,357 46,046,561

TOTAL ASSETS 3,877,517,636 3,620,796,090

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 10 208,769,290 ~ 208,769,290

Other equity 11 768,065,730 775,623,048

Total Equity 976,835,020 984,392,338

Liabilities

Non-currentliabilities

Financialliabilities

Borrowings 12 1,450,733,669 1,493,124,479

Provisions i3 1,049,486 825,564

Othernon-currentliabilities 14 212,655,816 212,655,816

Totat Non-currentliabilities 1,664,438,971 1,706,605,859

Currentliabilities

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1) 1,116,072,249 854,288,519

Trade payables 16 10,479,382 11,214,290

Otherfinancialliabilities 17 108,318,609 58,717,614

Other currentliabilities 18 1,359,734 5,567,509

Provisions 19 13,671 . 9,961

Total Currentliabilities 1,236,243,645 929,797,893

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,877,517,636 3,620,796,090

Corporate information and significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes { to 29 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

"As perour report attached"Pp ‘P

For DHIRUBHAT SHAH & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 102511W / W100292

KAUSHIK D SHAH

Partner

Membership No. 016502

Place: New Delhi

“195 MAY 2019

  
TAPEST, BUARAT Vi, GOENKA

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors

LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN No.: US5101DL2005PLC 143141

—

SHIV KUMAR JATIA

(Managing Director

DIN: 00006187

(Joint Managing Directé* CEO)

DIN: 01592813

feteBaan

DR. LALIT BHASIN

(Chairman ofthe Board and Audit

Committee)

DIN: 00001607

S Lid

RABAB ZAIDI

(Company Secretary)

Membership No. ACS 44111
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

BALANCESHEETAS AT 31ST MARCH 2019

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC 143141

 

 

(Amountin Rs)

: As at As at

Particulars Note 31 March2019 31 March 2018
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Equity

Equity share capital 10 208,769,290 ~ 208,769,290

Other equity 11 768,065,730 775,623,048

Total Equity 976,835,020 984,392,338

Liabilities

Non-currentliabilities

Financialliabilities

Borrowings 12 1,450,733,669 1,493,124,479

Provisions i3 1,049,486 825,564

Othernon-currentliabilities 14 212,655,816 212,655,816

Totat Non-currentliabilities 1,664,438,971 1,706,605,859

Currentliabilities

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1) 1,116,072,249 854,288,519

Trade payables 16 10,479,382 11,214,290

Otherfinancialliabilities 17 108,318,609 58,717,614

Other currentliabilities 18 1,359,734 5,567,509

Provisions 19 13,671 . 9,961

Total Currentliabilities 1,236,243,645 929,797,893
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

STATEMENTOF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2019

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

(Amount in Rs)

 

Particulars Note Forthe year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Revenue

Other Income 20 514,883 218,965

Total income 514,883 218,965

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 21 2,988,423 2,663,749

“Finance costs 22 1,179,798 1,170,905

Administrative & other expenses 23 3,946,137 _ 4,826,998

Total Expenses 8,114,358 8,661,652

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7,599,475) (8,442,687)

Tax expense

Current tax - -

Deferred tax - -

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7,599,475) (8,442,687)

Other comprehensive Income

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on post employment benefit plans 42,157 185,608

Other comprehensive Income 42,157 185,608

Total comprehensive Incomefor the year (7,557,318) (8,257,079)

Significant accounting policies 1

Expenditure during construction period (net) 3

Earnings Per Equity Share (face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Basic (0.36) (0.40)

Diluted (0.36) (0.40)

Corporate information and significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENTFORTHE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2019

CIN; U535101 DL2005PLC 143141

(Amountin Rs)

Note For the year Ended Forthe year Ended

31 March2019 31 March 2018
 

A Cash fiow from operating activities :

Net Loss as per Statement of Profit & Loss (7,599,475) (8,442,687)

Adjustments for ; :

Depreciation / Amortization - -

Interest expense 1,165,341 1,146,986

 

 

 

Interest Income : (500,237) (198,050)
Gain on disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment - -

Other Adjustinents  “ (40,688) (616,436)

Provision for gratuity : 306,767 127,566

Sundry balance written back - -

Operating profit before working capital changes (6,668,292) {7,982,621}

Otherfinancial assets and otherassets . (6,815,736) 12,441,208

Otherfinancialliabilities, otherliabilities and provisions (2,916,894) (1,875,051)

Cash generated/(used) from operations (16,400,922) 2,583,536

Income Taxes paid / (Refund) - -

Net Cash flew from Operating Activities (16,460,922) 2,583,536
 

B Cash flow from Investing activities

 

Loans and advances (given) (net) 21,289 51,063,950

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment (209,352) (495,743)

Sale proceeds ofproperty, plant and equipment - : 527,235

Capital work-in-progress (269,961,404) (387,915,279)

Interest received : 500,237 198,050

Net Cashfrom Investing Activities (269,649,229) (336,621,787)
 

C Cashflow from Financing Activities

 

 

 

 

Proceeds from borrowings 266,971,836 354,584,236

Interest paid (1,165,341) (1,146,986)

Net Cash from Financing Activities 265,806,495 353,437,250

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) : (20,243,656) 19,398,999

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oftheperiod 21,378,829 1,979,830

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,135,173 . 21,378,829

Corporate information and signiticant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY

(A) Equity share capital

Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

 

      

 

 

 

       
 

   
  

(Amount in Rs}

Balanceas at 1 x.angesnay Balance as at 31

April 2018 P 8) March 2019
the year

208,769,290 : 208,769,290

(B) Other equity

For the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Amount in Rs)

Reserves & Surplus

Fair Value through

Particulars Securities Premium Retained Earnin other Comprehensive Total

Reserve ° mes Income [FVTOCI]

Reserve

Balance as at 1 April 2018 833,077,160 (57,639,720) 185,608 775,623,048

Profit for the year - (7,599,475) (7,599,475)

Transfer from/to Other

Comprehensive income/(loss) for the

Remeasurements gain/(loss) on - - 42,157 42,157

defined benefit plan

Balance as at 31 March 2019 833,077,160 (65,239,195) 227,765 768,065,730

“As per ourreport attached"

For DHIRUBHAI SHAH & COLLP . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

Firm Registration No, 28 W100298 CIN No.: U55101DL2005PLC143141
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101 DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note: 1 Corporate Information andSignificant accounting policies
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Corporate Information

Leading Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in India and limited by shares (CIN No.

US55101DL2005PI.C143141). The registered office of the companyis situated at No.5 E-Block, Local shopping centre, Masjid Moth,

Greater Kailash-II, New Delhi-110048. The company was incorporated on December 01, 2005 and is engaged in the business of

hospitality services. The Company is presently developing an all villa hotel complex and an 18 hole, 72 par championship golf course.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) underthehistorical cost convention

on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section

133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 (‘Act'} (to the extent notified).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or are visionto

an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hither to in use,

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These

estimates and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the repotted amounts of assets and liabilities, the

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses

during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates include provisions for doubtful debts,

provision for income taxes and the useful lives offixed assets. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in

circutnstances surroundingthe estimates. Changes in estimates ate reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes

are made and,if material, their effects are-disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenuerecognition

Incomeis recognized overthe period in which such services ate performed, provided, no significant obligations remainat the end of the

period and collection of resulting receivables is reasonably certain.

The expenses are recognized as and whenthey accrue,

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipmentare stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, Costs directly attributable to

acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The company

depreciates property, plant and equipment overtheit estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Advances paid towards the acquisition ofpropetty, plant and equipmentoutstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital

advances under other non-current assets and.the cost ofassets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-

progress’, Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and cquipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on items of Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight Line method over the useful lives of Assets

estimated by the Management. Depreciation for asscts purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. The Management

estimatesthe useful lives are as follows:

  

   
   

   

% Useful Lives

~ Furniture & Fixtures 9.50% 10 years

- Vehicles pe 11.88% 08 years
~ Vehicles (two wheelers) pets 9.50% 10 years
- Office Equipments A 19.00% 05 years

- Computers = 31.67% 03 years

Depreciation on Leasehold Improvements is period oflease.
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Greater Kailash-II, New Delhi-110048. The company was incorporated on December 01, 2005 and is engaged in the business of

hospitality services. The Company is presently developing an all villa hotel complex and an 18 hole, 72 par championship golf course.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) underthehistorical cost convention

on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section

133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 (‘Act'} (to the extent notified).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or are visionto

an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hither to in use,

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These

estimates and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the repotted amounts of assets and liabilities, the

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses

during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates include provisions for doubtful debts,

provision for income taxes and the useful lives offixed assets. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in

circutnstances surroundingthe estimates. Changes in estimates ate reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes

are made and,if material, their effects are-disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenuerecognition

Incomeis recognized overthe period in which such services ate performed, provided, no significant obligations remainat the end of the

period and collection of resulting receivables is reasonably certain.

The expenses are recognized as and whenthey accrue,

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipmentare stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, Costs directly attributable to

acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The company

depreciates property, plant and equipment overtheit estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

Advances paid towards the acquisition ofpropetty, plant and equipmentoutstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital

advances under other non-current assets and.the cost ofassets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-

progress’, Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and cquipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on items of Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight Line method over the useful lives of Assets

estimated by the Management. Depreciation for asscts purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. The Management

estimatesthe useful lives are as follows:

  

   
   

   

% Useful Lives

~ Furniture & Fixtures 9.50% 10 years

- Vehicles pe 11.88% 08 years
~ Vehicles (two wheelers) pets 9.50% 10 years
- Office Equipments A 19.00% 05 years

- Computers = 31.67% 03 years

Depreciation on Leasehold Improvements is period oflease.
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Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over the respective

individual estimated useful lives ona straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use,

Capital work-in-progress

Administration and genetal ovethead expetises attributable to construction of items of Property, Plant and Equipment incurredtill they

are ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost ofthe related assets.

Employee’s benefits

Short termemployee benefits .

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.

Benefits suchas salaries, wages and bonus,etc., are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee

renders the related service,

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The Company expenses its contributions towards provident fund, which are deposited

with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.

Defined benefitplans

Gratuity is a defined benefits plan. The present value of obligations under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial

valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows, The discount rates used for determining the present

value of obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Governmentsecurities as at the Balance Sheet date,

having maturity periods approximatingto the termsofrelated obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains or losses on the curtailment or

settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized whenthe curtailmentorsettlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absetices schemeconstitute other employee benefit, Theliability in respect of compensated

absencesis provided onthe basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses

ate recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign curtency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences

arising on revenue transactions ducto the differences in the exchange rate between the transaction date and the date ofsettlement of any

monetary items, are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencyare translated at the exchange rate prevalentat the date of the

Balance Sheet and resultant gain/ loss,if any, is takento the Statement ofProfit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprise current tax (ic. the amount of tax for the period determined in accordance ‘with the Incometax Act,

1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of the timing differences between the accounting income and taxable

incomefor the period). The deferred tax charge orcredit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the

tax tates that have been enacted orsubstantively enacted by the Balance Sheetdate.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in the future. However,

where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss undertaxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is

vittual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written down or written

up to reflect the amountthat is reasonably / virtually cerlain (as the case may be) to be realized.
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Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets & liabilities

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are

initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and

financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way

purchase and sale of financial assets are accountedforat trade date.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized costif it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in

orderto collect contractual cash flows and the contractual termsof the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

- solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incomeifit is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has made an itrevocable election forits investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent

changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

In addition, in cases where the Company has made an itrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are

classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changesin fair value are recognizedin other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value throughprofit or loss

A financial asset whichis not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit orloss.

Financial liabilities

Financialliabilities are subsequently carricd at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration

recognized in a business combination whichis subsequently measured at fair value throughprofit and loss. For trade and other payables

maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due tothe short maturity of these

instruments.

Impairment

Financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability when ever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairmenttesting, the recoverable amount {i.c. the

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not

getierate cash flows that are largely independent of those from otherassets. In such cases, the recoverable amountis determined forthe

CGU to whichthe asset belongs.

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

If such assets ate considered to be impaired, the impairmentto be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the

amount by which the carrying value of the assets exccedsthe estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An impairmentlossis reversed

in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determinethe recoverable amount. The carrying

amountof the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amountthat

would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized forthe

asset in prior years.

Earnings per share

The basic carnings per share are computed. by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for the year by the

weighted average numberofequity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earningsper share are computed using the weighted average numberofequity and dilutive equivalent equity shares outstanding

during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutiv  

1.12

I

a}

b)

©)

1.13

a)

b)

LEADING HOTELSLIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets & liabilities

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are

initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and

financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way

purchase and sale of financial assets are accountedforat trade date.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized costif it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in

orderto collect contractual cash flows and the contractual termsof the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

- solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incomeifit is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has made an itrevocable election forits investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent

changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

In addition, in cases where the Company has made an itrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are

classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changesin fair value are recognizedin other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value throughprofit or loss

A financial asset whichis not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit orloss.

Financial liabilities

Financialliabilities are subsequently carricd at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration

recognized in a business combination whichis subsequently measured at fair value throughprofit and loss. For trade and other payables

maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due tothe short maturity of these

instruments.

Impairment

Financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability when ever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairmenttesting, the recoverable amount {i.c. the

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not

getierate cash flows that are largely independent of those from otherassets. In such cases, the recoverable amountis determined forthe

CGU to whichthe asset belongs.

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

If such assets ate considered to be impaired, the impairmentto be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the

amount by which the carrying value of the assets exccedsthe estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An impairmentlossis reversed

in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determinethe recoverable amount. The carrying

amountof the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amountthat

would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized forthe

asset in prior years.

Earnings per share

The basic carnings per share are computed. by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for the year by the

weighted average numberofequity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earningsper share are computed using the weighted average numberofequity and dilutive equivalent equity shares outstanding

during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutiv  

1.12

I

a}

b)

©)

1.13

a)

b)

LEADING HOTELSLIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets & liabilities

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are

initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and

financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way

purchase and sale of financial assets are accountedforat trade date.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized costif it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in

orderto collect contractual cash flows and the contractual termsof the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

- solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incomeifit is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has made an itrevocable election forits investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent

changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

In addition, in cases where the Company has made an itrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are

classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changesin fair value are recognizedin other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value throughprofit or loss

A financial asset whichis not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit orloss.

Financial liabilities

Financialliabilities are subsequently carricd at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration

recognized in a business combination whichis subsequently measured at fair value throughprofit and loss. For trade and other payables

maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due tothe short maturity of these

instruments.

Impairment

Financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability when ever events or changes in circumstances
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Borrowing Cost

Borrowingcosts that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of

the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period to whichtheyrelate.

Cashand cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demanddeposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investinents with original maturities ofthree months orless.

Leases

Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When

acquired, suchassets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimumlease payments at the inception of the lease, which

everis lower. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense ona straightline basis in netprofit in the Statement

of Profit and Loss overthelease term. ,

Segment Reporting

The companyprepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the

financial statements of the company as a whole,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Companyhas a present obligation as a result of a past event andit is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation andreliable estimate can be made ofthe amountofthe

obligation. A contingent liability is disclosed where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will

not, require an outflow of resources. The Company does not recognize assets which are of contingent nature. However, if it has

become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the financial

statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

3 Capital work in progress .

(Amountin Rs}
 

 

 

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Opening Balance 2,274,936,165 1,882,625,962

Add : during the period

Travelling 1,086,016 | 5,177,217
Interest on loan* 222,833,994 269,503,532

Loan processing and syndication expenses 3,107,145 , 5,915,339

Project development(excluding sainple villa expenditure) 11,668,358 60,679,589

Communication 214,416 319,739

Entertainment 9,514 21,724

Printing and stationary 58,892 322,420

Security , , 1,357,032 2,586,615

Staff welfare 442,708 502,246

Repair and maintenance

- Office equipments 8,601 39,357

- Others 6,166 48,514

Rent 1,488,283 1,480,908

Salary and wages 23,101,795 18,256,911

Gratuity 310,477 229,307

Sitting Fee : 190,000 220,000

Site office running expenses 3,021,245 3,343,776

Depreciation 4,239,678 4,394,924

Sample Villa development expenditure 1,060,478 2,095,846

2,549,140,965 2,257,763,926

Less : during the year

Add: Transfer fromservice tax cenvat { reversal) - 17,274,994

Less: Interest on security deposits (Ind As) A/c 3,718 102,755

2,549,137,247 2,274,936,165

* The Company has not provided forinterest liability amounting to Rs. 7,50,13,349/-, relating to Inter Corporate Deposits and otherfinancial

commitments,

4 Other financial assets

 

 

 

 

Particul As at ‘ Asat
articulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Rental deposits* 168,190 178,906

168,190 178,906

* Rental deposits carried at amortised cost

5 Other non current assets

Particul As at Asat
armours 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Capital advances

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances - 94,500

- 94,500

Securities deposits( unsecured) 1,902,347 1,829,136

1,902,347 1,923 636 
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

6 Cash and cash equivalents

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars | Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Balance with banks

- On current account 1,130,521 21,330,620

Cash on hand 4,652 48,209

1,135,173 21,378,829

Other financial assets

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Interest accrued on

--Termdeposits 633,265 314,996

Other bank balances

- Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 2,438,000 2,438,000

3,071,265 2,752,996

Current tax assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Advance tax & tax deducted at source 40,981 445,675

income Tax Paid for AY 2016-17 (in Appeal) 5,001,000 -

5,041,981 445,675

Other current assets

As at Asat
Particulars

Advances other than capital advances

Advanceto vendors

Prepaid expenses

Balances with GST Dept.(input credit)

 

31 March 2019

111,302
589,634

22,680,002
23,380,938

31 March 2018

27,827
585,598

20,855,636

21,469,061
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC1 43141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

10 Equity Share capital

 

 

(Amountin Rs)

. As at Asat
Particularenas 31 March2019 31 March 2018

Authorised .
2,50,00,000 (previous year 2,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each* 250,000,000 250,000,000

250,000,000 250,000,000

Issued, subscribed andfully paid up

2,08,76,929 (previous year 2,08,76,929) equily shares of Ra. 10 eachfully paid up* 208,769,290 208,769,290

208,769,290 208,769,290

The Companyhas one class ofequity shares having a parvalue of Rs, 10 per shate, Each holder ofequity sharesis entitled to one vote per share with a right to receive per share dividend declared

by the Company,In the eventof liquidation, the equity shareholdersare entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company(afterdistribution ofall preferential amounts) in the proportion of equity

shares held by the shareholders,

company.

10 (b} Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company:

10 (a) 20,826,929 (previous year 20,826,929) equity shares of Rs. 10 eachfully paid up, are held by Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd whichis a subsidiary ofAsian Hotels (North) Limited, the ullimate holding

 

 

  

    

As at As at

. 31 March2019 31 March 2018
Particulars

Number % holding Number % holding

of shares in the shares of shares in the shares
Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd. 20,826,929 99.76% 20,826,929 99.76%  
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10 Equity Share capital

 

 

(Amountin Rs)

. As at Asat
Particularenas 31 March2019 31 March 2018
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The Companyhas one class ofequity shares having a parvalue of Rs, 10 per shate, Each holder ofequity sharesis entitled to one vote per share with a right to receive per share dividend declared

by the Company,In the eventof liquidation, the equity shareholdersare entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company(afterdistribution ofall preferential amounts) in the proportion of equity

shares held by the shareholders,

company.

10 (b} Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company:
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11 Other equity

(Amountin Rs)
 

 

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March2019 31 March 2018

Reserve & surplus
Securities premium reserve 833,077,160 833,077,160
Retained earnings (65,239,195) (57,639,720)
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI] Reserve 227,765 185,608

768,065,730 775,623,048

Reconciliation :

Retained earnings

Opening balance (57,639,720) (49,197,033)

Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year (7,599,475) (8,442,687)

Gain/ (Loss) arising on changesin fair value . -

Closing balance (65,239,195) (57,639,720)

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI] Reserve

Opening balance 185,608 -

Add: Adjusted from surplus in statement of Profit & Loss

- Re- measurement gains/(losses) on employee benefit 42,157 185,608

Closing balance : 227,765 185,608

12 Borrowings
 

Non-Current Portion Current Maturities #
 

As at Asat As at As at

      
 

 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Termloan

Secured

From Bank * 1,426,895,013 1,464,228,346 37,333,333 -

Vehicle loans

Secured

From Bank ** 402,496 1,311,766 909,270 827,097

From others ** - 4,717,512 4,701,285 6,881,177

Other loans

Secured

From body corporates *** 23,436,161 22,866,856 10,386,868 10,307,339

1,450,733,669 1,493, 124,479 53,330,756 18,015,613
 

Notes:

* Term Joan from bank (Yes bank) is secured, at the interest rate of base rate 10.25% plus 0.62% and TL-II & III base rate 10.25% plus 2.40% ,by

Mortgage of land and building of Goa Project on land admeasuring 160 acres and by Charges over moveable Fixed Assets (excluding vehicle) and

current assets ofGoa project. :

** Vehicle Loan from bank (Axis bank) carried interest @ 9.51% pa, The loan is repayable in monthly installments along with interest, from the date

of loan. The loan is secured by hypothecation of certain vehicles of the company.

** Loan from Non-banking financial institutions (Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd) for acquisition of vehicles carried interest @ 10.69% to 12.976% pa,

Theloan is repayable in monthly installments along with interest, from the date of loan. The loan is secured by hypothecationof certain vehicles of

the company.

*** Inter Corporate Deposit carries interest rate 18% p.a. by Mortgage of land of admeasuring 46100 sq. mts.

I, Current maturities are considered as other currentliabilities (refer to note 17)
¢

IL. The Company has been generally regular in its loan(s) / borrowing(s) repaymentobligations. Followingis the summary ofthe defaults made:

 

Due Date

61.03.2019

01.04.2019**

Bank Amount Due Nature

Rs. 1,23,16,166
Rs. 1,36,35,755

 

‘Yes Bank Limited Interest on loan

Yes Bank Limited
 

Interest on loan      
 

“This default has occurred after the balance sheet date but before the date ofsigning the financial statements & audit rep 
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13 Provisions

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Amountin Rs)

7 As at Asat
P. iarticulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Gratuity 916,400 651,790

‘Lease equalization reserve 133,086 173,774

1,049,486 825,564

14 Other non-currentliabilities (Amountin Rs)

eo As at Asat
P Iarticulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Advances/ securities deposits for platinum golf membership (PGM)in goa project * 212,655,816 212,655,816

212,655,816 212,655,816

* Advances / refundable securities towards Platinum Golf Membership in the Goa Project.

15 Borrowings

As at As at
Particulars

Loans repayable on demand including interest

Fromother parties*

-body corporates

Notes :

* Inter Corporate Deposit carries interest rate from 9% to 18% p.a.

31 March 2019

1,116,072,249

31 March 2018

854,288,519

 

1,116,072,249

1, There is no continuing default as on the balance sheet date in repaymentof loans and interest thereon,

16 Trade Payables

854,288,519

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

For goods and services 10,479,382 11,214,290

Dues to micro and small enterprises* - -

10,479,382 41,214,290

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:

DISCLOSURE UNDER MSMEDACT,2006 2018-19 2017-18

(Rs.) (Rs.)
 

(a) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMEDAct, 2006

(b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on

the above amount, unpaid ;

(c) Payment madeto suppliers (other than interest) beyond the

appointed day, during the year

,(d) Interest paid to suppliers underMSMED Act(other than Section16)

(e) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMEDAct(Section 16)

(f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act

for payments already made

(g) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each of

the year to suppliers under

The information has been given in respect of such vendorsto the

the basis of information available with the company
    ed as micro and small enterprises on
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17 Otherfinancialliabilities (Amountin Rs)

' As at Asat

Particulars 31 March2019 31 March 2018

Current maturities of long-term debts (refer to note 12) 53,330,756 18,015,613

Interest accrued 25,949,997 13,686,224

Other payables

Payable to employees 6,936,856 3,922,879

Others 22,101,000 23,092,898

108,318,609 58,717,614

18 Other currentliabilities

Particulars As at Asat" 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Tax deducted at source and other statutory dues 1,179,734 5,362,009

Payable for Expenses 180,000 205,500

1,359,734 5,567,509

19 Provisions

Particul As at As at

antemars 31 March2019 31 March 2018

Gratuity 13,671 9,96]

13,671 9,961
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(Amountin Rs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

20 Other Income

Interest from

Income Tax refunds 33,108 -

Others 255,368 -

Indian banks 211,761 198,050

Foreign exchange Profit (net) 8,646 -

Excess provision written back 6,000 -

Sundry Balances written back - 20,915

514,883 218,965

21 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 2,815,313 2,497,220

Staff welfare expenses . 173,110 166,529

2,988,423 2,663,749

22 ~=Finance cost

Interest 1,165,341 1,146,986
Bank charges 14,457 23,919

1,179,798 1,170,905

23 Administrative & other expenses

Advertisement _ 331,656

Books and periodicals _ 633

Donation _ 1,000

Communication. 135,289 130,145

Printing and stationery 136,574 177,559

Conveyance 531,774 611,032

Foreign exchangeloss (net) _ 19,626

Business promotion 143,632 397,884

Legal and professional 315,630 . 534,738

Loss onsale of fixed assets _ 40,109

Repair and maintenance

- Office Equipments 23,614 19,056

~ Others 36,185 38,426

- Computers 36,996 30,391

Rates and taxes 66,122 161,817

Audit fees 200,000 200,000

Travelling expenses 553,780 569,272

Miscellaneous expenses 2,096 14,900

Sundry balances writtenoff <i _ 238,135
Security charges 1,764,445 1,310,619

3,946,137 4,826,998

 

  
  
 

    

  

£8accu
Jenin
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24,1

24.3

24.6

24.7

LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143 141
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Contingent Liabilities

I. Iu respect of petitions filed before the NGT

Petitions have been filed before the National Green Tribunal against grant of Costal Regulation Zone and Private Forest by the competentauthorities to the
Company’s project at Goa, which are being contested by the Company.

Based onlegal advice received and outcomeof similar casesin past, the managementis hopeful of favorable outcome and does not foresee them to have any
material impact on the progress ofthe project of the Company.

ii, In respect of Income Tax Matters

During the year, income tax assessment of the Company for AY 2016-17 was completed u/s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act 1961 wherein additions of Rs,30.56

Crore has been made u/s 68 of the said Act in respect of Inter corporate deposits received by the Company, consequently a demand of Rs. 14.03 Crores,

comprising of tax and interest, has been raised. The Companyhasfiled appeal against the said assessment order and has deposited Rs. 50,01,000 towards above
disputed tax demand.

Details in respect of payment to auditors: 

 

    

Particulars Forthe year ended 31.03.2019] Forthe year ended 31.03.2018

As auditor

Statutory audit fee* 200,000 200,000

In other capacity

Other services* . - -

Total 200,000 200,000 
* Exclusive of taxes.

Larnings per share:

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per equity share is set out below:
 

 

    

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2019] For the year ended 31.03.2018

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year of face value of Rs. 10 each 20,876,929 20,876,929

Numberof shares outstanding at the end of the year of face value of Rs. 10 each 20,876,929 20,876,929

Weighted average numberof equity shares outstanding during the year (A) 20,876,929 20,876,929

Profit (Loss) after tax for the year (B) (7,599,475) {8,442,687)

Basic earnings per share of face value of Re. 10 Each (0.36) (0.40)

Diluted earnings per share of face value of Re, 10 Each (0.36) (0.40)

Deferred Tax
In view ofthe project under developmentand absence of foreseeable profits in the near future, deferred tax assets have not beencreated in the accounts,

Operating Segments

In the opinion of Management, there is only one operating segment (“Hospitality/Hotel Business”) at onc location, namely Goa (India) as envisaged by Indian

Accounting standard (Ind-AS) 108 “ Operating Seginents”, prescribed by the Companies ( Indian Accounting standards) Rules,2016, Accordingly, no separate

disclosure for Operating segmentis required to be made in the Ind ASfinancial statements of the Company.

Employces' Provident 'unds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees Stale Insurance Act, 1948 are presently not applicable to the Company,

DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING S'TANDARD (IND AS) 19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

This section describe briefly how the accounting resuits are determined inthis report,

Calculation Methods
The method and basis to be used for the calculations is prescribed by Ind AS 19. Actuarial valuation has beencarried out as per the Projected Unit Credit Method

(PUCM)as being defined by para 57 (a) to determineliabilities and service cost as at 31/03/2019,

The attached disclosures do not take into account the cost of running any defined contributions plans or defined contributions sections ofthe plan, if any. The total
cost to the Companyofrunning these {i.e, the cash-contribution paid by the Companyto these plans over the financial year) will need to be addedto the expenses

shown,

Assumptions /

Ind As 19 sets out the following general requirements for the purpose of sctting the assumptions:

> Actuarial assumptions shall be unbiased, and mutually compatible; and

> Financial assumptionssliall be based on market expectations, at the balance sheetdate, for the period over whichthe obligations are to be settled

The Principal actuarial assumptions considered in the valuation were:

Economic Assumptions

The discount rate and salary increases assumed arc the key financial assumptions and should be considered together; it is the difference or 'gap' betweenthese rates

which is more important than the individual rates in isolation,
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Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101 DL2005PLC143 141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Discount Rate

Ind As 19 requires that the assumed discountrate is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date Government bonds, The term ofthe risk

free investments has to be consistent with the estimated term benefit obligations.

Theestimated term of the benefits obligations works out to 13,15 years, For the current valuation a discountrate of 7.71% p.a, Compound has beenused,

Salary Escalation Rate

Thesalary escalationrate usually consists ofat least three components, viz. regular increments, price inflation and promotionalincreases. In additionto this any
commitments by the management regarding future salary increases and the Company's philosophy towards employee remuneration are also to be takeninto

account. Again a long-term view as to trend in salary escalationrates has to be takenratherthan guided by the escalation rates experienced in the immediate past,

if they have beeninfluenced by unusualfactors,

Attrition Rate / Withdrawal Rate

Past experience indicate the currentlevelofattrition, The assumption may incorporate the Company's policy towards retention of employees,historical data &
industry outlook,

Mortality Rate

Wehave used Indian Assured Lives Mortality Table (ALM) 2006-08 as issued by Institute of Actuaries of India, for the valuation. The assumptionsused are

summarized in the followingtable,

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     
 

Given below is a summary of the information as at 31/03/18 to 31/03/19:

of valuation 31/03/2018

of 8

‘otal for 5,59,000

service (Years, 4.61 3.22

ears : 41,92 41.43

life 16,08 16.57

life decrements 13.15 13.58

‘otal Accrued benefit amount 9,92,572 7,21,029

Outline of Benefits

Eligibility All permanent employees of the company

Salary forgratuity Last drawn basic salary

: Completed year of service, service of six month and above rounded off

Plan service as one year

Contribution Bmployee - Nil, Company-Full costs

Vesting period 5 years ofservice

Benefit payable onretirement 15/26 x salary x number of completed years of service

Benefit payable on withdrawal/ resignation 15/26 x salary x number of completed years ofscrvice-

same as normalretirement benefit except that no vesting condilions

Benefit payable ondeath/ disability apply

Maxiinumceiling Rs, 20,00,000

Actuarial valuation Assumptions used for valuation

Financial assumptions used to determine the profit & loss charge 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Discounting rate 771 PA, 7.86 PA.

Salary growthrate TOO PA, 7.00 P.A.

Expected rate of return onplanassets 0.00 P.A 0,00 PA

Assumptions

58 Y 58 Y¥

table IALM

tumover/ altrition rate

18 to 30 Years
30 to 45 Years

Above 45 Years

 

Summaryof Financial results

Exceutive Summary
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Amount recognized in statement of financial position at period - end 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Present value of defined benefit obligation 930,071 661,751

Fair value ofplan assels . - -

930,071 661,751

Unrecognized asscts due to the assets ceiling - . -

Netdefined benefit (Assets) / Liability recognized in statement of finanelal position 930,071 661,751

Total defined benefit cost / (income) included in profit & loss and other 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

comprehensive income during the period

Total charge / (credit) recognised in profit and loss , 310,477 229,307

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (OCD (Gain) / Losses get (42,157) (185,608)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED
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Nofesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclosure Statement
: in defined benefit 31/03/201

; defined Benefit as at the of the 661,751 739

Interest cost . 02
current service cost . 171
service cost _

. 1211
on ob 85.

Benefit end of 751

in fair value of . 31/03/20 31/03/2018
Fair Value of assets at the of the NA

Interest Income NA NA

the

NA
on assets NA

Value of assets at the end ofthe NA

31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Net defined benefit cost / (income) included in statement of profit & loss at period end# .

Service cost 259,456 171,205

Netinterest cost 51,021 58,102

Past service cost - -

Remeasurements* : - -

Administration expenses“ - -

(Gain) / Loss due to settlements / curtailments / terminations/ divestitures - . -

Total defined benefit cost / (income) included in profit & loss 310,477 229,307

*OCI methodology is being adopted forfirst time for March 2018 valuation.

Analysis of amountrecognized in order comprehensive (income) / loss at period end# 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Amount recognized in OCL, (Gain) / Loss beginning of period (185,608) -

R remenits due to:

1, Effect of change in financial assumptions 13,271 {28,302)

2. Effect of change in demographic assumptions - -

3. Effect of experience adjustments (55,428) (157,306)

4, (Gain) / loss on curtailiments / settlements - -

5, Return on planassets (excluding interest) - -

6, Changeinassets ceiling “ : -

Total remeasurements recognized in OCI (gain)/ loss (42,157) (185,608)

Total remeasurements recognized in OCI (gain) / toss, end of period (227,765) (185,608)

Tota! defined benefit cost / (income) included in profit & loss and other 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

comprehensive income#

Amount recognized in P&L, end of period 310,477 229,307

Amount recognized in OCI, end ofperiod (42,157) (185,608)

Total net defined benefit cost / (income) recognized at period end 268,320 43,699

#This has been considered as a patt of Capital Work in Progress under Note-13

Reconciliation of balance sheet amount 31/03/2019 34/03/2018

Balancesheet(assets) / liability, beginning of period 661,751 739,206

True-up - :

Total charge / {credit) recognisedin profit and loss 310,477 229,307

Total remeasurements recognised in OC (income)/ loss (42,157) (185,608)

Acquisition / business combination / divestiture / - >

Employer contribution - -

Benefit paid “ {121,154)

Otherevents

Balance shect (assets) / liability, end of period 930,071 661,751

Current non current bifurcation 31N3/2019 31/03/2018

Currentliability 13,67] 9,961

Non-Currentliability 916,400 651,790

Netliabitity 930,071 661,751      
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: US5101DL2005PLC143141

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Related Party Disclosure

(A) NameofRelated Parties and description thereof:

 

1. Holding Company Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd — Mauritius
 

Fineline Hospitality & Consultancy Pte Ltd — Mauritius
 

Asian Hotels (North) Ltd
 

 

 

 

2. Subsidiaries Nil

3. Fellow Subsidiaries Nil

4, Associates Nil
 

 

5. Key Management Personnel Mr. Shiv Kumar Jatia (Executive)
 

Mr, Tapesh Bharat Kumar Goenka (Executive)
 

Ms. Anita Thapar ( Non-executive)
 

Mr. Amritesh Jatia ( Non-executive)
 

Mr. Lalit Bhasin ( Independent Non-executive)
 

Mr, Sanjay Banthiya (Independent Non-executive)
 

Ms. Rabab Zaidi (Companysecretary)
   Mr. Ajay Kumar (ChiefFinancial Officer)  
 

(B) Enterprise over which key managementpersonnelare able to exercise significant influence and with whom transactions have taken place during

the year :-

a). Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd.

b). Asian Hotels (North) Ltd.

 

 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

(Amountin Rs)

Related party Name Balance ason {Service received! Payment |TDS deducted} Balance as on Nature of

31.03.2018 (net during the madeduring| during the [31.03.2019 (net of} Transactions

of TDS) period the period period TDS)

Hotel

Asian Hotels (North) Ltd. 688935 - - 688,935 Accominodatio

n Services

Transaction with Key Management Personnel during the year :-

Particulars 31.03.2019} 31.03.2018

Director Sitting fee :-

Ms. Anita Thapar 30,000 50,000

Mr. Sanjay Banthiya 70,000 80,000

Mr. Lalit Bhasin 90,000] 90,000

CompanySecretary

Salary Ms. Rabab Zaidi 478,332 328,261

Chief Financial Officer

Salary Mr. Ajay Kumar [,012,350 902,350     
Other Information

(a)Expenditure in foreign currency

 

Particulars For the Year Ended 31,03,19 For the Year Ended 31,03.18
 

 
Gi) Fee for Technical and Consultancy

(ii)Travelling Expenses  
Rs. 37,77,359/-

 
Rs. 27,77,399/-

Rs. 3,10,331/-  
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1. Holding Company Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd — Mauritius
 

Fineline Hospitality & Consultancy Pte Ltd — Mauritius
 

Asian Hotels (North) Ltd
 

 

 

 

2. Subsidiaries Nil

3. Fellow Subsidiaries Nil

4, Associates Nil
 

 

5. Key Management Personnel Mr. Shiv Kumar Jatia (Executive)
 

Mr, Tapesh Bharat Kumar Goenka (Executive)
 

Ms. Anita Thapar ( Non-executive)
 

Mr. Amritesh Jatia ( Non-executive)
 

Mr. Lalit Bhasin ( Independent Non-executive)
 

Mr, Sanjay Banthiya (Independent Non-executive)
 

Ms. Rabab Zaidi (Companysecretary)
   Mr. Ajay Kumar (ChiefFinancial Officer)  
 

(B) Enterprise over which key managementpersonnelare able to exercise significant influence and with whom transactions have taken place during

the year :-

a). Lexon Hotel Ventures Ltd.

b). Asian Hotels (North) Ltd.

 

 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

(Amountin Rs)

Related party Name Balance ason {Service received! Payment |TDS deducted} Balance as on Nature of

31.03.2018 (net during the madeduring| during the [31.03.2019 (net of} Transactions

of TDS) period the period period TDS)

Hotel

Asian Hotels (North) Ltd. 688935 - - 688,935 Accominodatio

n Services

Transaction with Key Management Personnel during the year :-

Particulars 31.03.2019} 31.03.2018

Director Sitting fee :-

Ms. Anita Thapar 30,000 50,000

Mr. Sanjay Banthiya 70,000 80,000

Mr. Lalit Bhasin 90,000] 90,000

CompanySecretary

Salary Ms. Rabab Zaidi 478,332 328,261

Chief Financial Officer

Salary Mr. Ajay Kumar [,012,350 902,350     
Other Information

(a)Expenditure in foreign currency

 

Particulars For the Year Ended 31,03,19 For the Year Ended 31,03.18
 

 
Gi) Fee for Technical and Consultancy

(ii)Travelling Expenses  
Rs. 37,77,359/-

 
Rs. 27,77,399/-

Rs. 3,10,331/-  
 

 

 



 

 

LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

25.1 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans in domestic cutrency and inter-corporate deposits. The main purposeof these financial

liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and short-term deposits.

The Companyis exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

- Marketrisk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the aboverisks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for

measuring and managing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations

resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks

and financial institutions. .

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amountof financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposureto credit risk at the reporting date was:

 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit

    
Losses (ECL)

Cash and cash equivalent 1,135,173 21,378,829

Other financial assets 3,071,265 2,752,996

Total 4,206,438 24,131,825
 

{ii} Provision for expected credit losses

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Hence

based on historic default rates, the Company believes that, no impairment allowanceis necessary in respect of above mentioned financial assets.
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Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

25.1 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans in domestic cutrency and inter-corporate deposits. The main purposeof these financial

liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and short-term deposits.

The Companyis exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Creditrisk

- Liquidity risk

- Marketrisk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the aboverisks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for

measuring and managing risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations

resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks

and financial institutions. .

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amountof financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposureto credit risk at the reporting date was:

 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit

    
Losses (ECL)

Cash and cash equivalent 1,135,173 21,378,829

Other financial assets 3,071,265 2,752,996

Total 4,206,438 24,131,825
 

{ii} Provision for expected credit losses

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Hence

based on historic default rates, the Company believes that, no impairment allowanceis necessary in respect of above mentioned financial assets.
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LEADING HOTELS LIMITED

CIN: U55101DL2005PLC 143141

Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

25.2 Financial Risk Management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financialliabilities that are settled

by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managingliquidity is to ensure,as far as possible,thatit will always have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the managementof short, medium and long term funding andliquidity

management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing

facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets andliabilities,

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including the

servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters.

(i) Financing arrangements

The companyhad accessto the following undrawnborrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

 

 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March2018

Fixed-rate borrowings

Term loans 2,535,771 ,654 2,535,771,654

(ii) Maturities of financialliabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financialliabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

 

 

 

     
 

 

 

 

  

31 March 2019 (Amountin Rs)

Contractual maturities of financial Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 Years 2to5 Years More than 5 years Total
liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Rupee Term Loan 37,333,333 74,666,667 298,666,667 1,053,561,679 1,464,228,346

Other secured loan 15,997,423 12,821,224 11,017,433 39,836,080

Unsecured loan 1,116,072,249 1,116,072,249

Trade Payables 10,479,382 “ 10,479,382

Payable to employees 6,936,856 - - - 6,936,856

Payable for expenses 180,000 - - - 180,000

Others 22,101,000 - - - 22,101,000

Total 1,209,100,243 87,487,891 309,684,100 1,053,561,679 2,659,833,913

31 March 2018 (Amountin Rs)

Contractual maturities of financial Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 Years 2to5 Years More than 5 years Total
liabilities

Non-derivative financial]liabilities

Rupee Term Loan - 37,333,333.00 261,333,334 1,165,561,679 1,464,228,346

Other secured loan 18,015,613 17,556,985 11,339,149 46,911,747

Unsecured loan 854,288,519 854,288,519

Trade Payables 11,214,290 ~ 11,214,290

Payable to employees 3,922,879 - - - 3,922,879

Payable for expenses 205,500 - - ~ 205,500

Others 23,091,898 - 1,000 - 23,092,898

Total 910,738,699 §4,890,318 272,673,483 1,165,561,679 2,403,864,179     
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Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

25.2 Financial Risk Management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financialliabilities that are settled

by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managingliquidity is to ensure,as far as possible,thatit will always have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the managementof short, medium and long term funding andliquidity

management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing

facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets andliabilities,

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including the

servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters.

(i) Financing arrangements

The companyhad accessto the following undrawnborrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

 

 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March2018

Fixed-rate borrowings

Term loans 2,535,771 ,654 2,535,771,654

(ii) Maturities of financialliabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financialliabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

 

 

 

     
 

 

 

 

  

31 March 2019 (Amountin Rs)

Contractual maturities of financial Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 Years 2to5 Years More than 5 years Total
liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Rupee Term Loan 37,333,333 74,666,667 298,666,667 1,053,561,679 1,464,228,346

Other secured loan 15,997,423 12,821,224 11,017,433 39,836,080

Unsecured loan 1,116,072,249 1,116,072,249

Trade Payables 10,479,382 “ 10,479,382

Payable to employees 6,936,856 - - - 6,936,856

Payable for expenses 180,000 - - - 180,000

Others 22,101,000 - - - 22,101,000

Total 1,209,100,243 87,487,891 309,684,100 1,053,561,679 2,659,833,913

31 March 2018 (Amountin Rs)

Contractual maturities of financial Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 Years 2to5 Years More than 5 years Total
liabilities

Non-derivative financial]liabilities

Rupee Term Loan - 37,333,333.00 261,333,334 1,165,561,679 1,464,228,346

Other secured loan 18,015,613 17,556,985 11,339,149 46,911,747

Unsecured loan 854,288,519 854,288,519

Trade Payables 11,214,290 ~ 11,214,290

Payable to employees 3,922,879 - - - 3,922,879

Payable for expenses 205,500 - - ~ 205,500

Others 23,091,898 - 1,000 - 23,092,898

Total 910,738,699 §4,890,318 272,673,483 1,165,561,679 2,403,864,179     
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CIN: U55101DL2005PLC143141

Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

25.3 Financial Risk Management

Marketrisk

Marketriskis the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchangerates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or

the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currencyrisk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency otherthan entity’s functional currency,
hetice exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises.

25.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order

to optimize the company's position with regards to the interest income and interest expenses and to manage theinterest rate risk, treasury performs a .
comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in it total
portfolio. :

The companyis not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the specified reporting date.

Refer Note 12 forinterest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instrumentatthe reporting date.

26. Financial Instruments ~ Accounting Classifications and fair yalue measurements

Thefair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at whichthe instrument could be exchanged in a currenttransaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced orliquidation sale,

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value

1. Fair values of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other currentliabilities, short term loans from banks

and other financial institutions approximate their cacrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters suchas interest rates and individual

credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on the evaluation,allowances are taken to accountforthe expected losses of these receivables

The company usesthe following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values offinancial instruments by valuation technique

Level 1 : quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets orliabilities.

Level 2 : other techniques for whichall inputs which have a significant effects on the recorded fair value are observable,either directly or indirectly

Level 3 : techniques which use inputs that have a significant cffects on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

There are no financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value/amortized cost for which Level 1 or Level 2 inputs have been used hence disclosurerelated

to Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not applicable.

‘The carrying amounts of short term deposits, trade payables, other current liabilities, employee related liabilities and payable for expenses and cash and

cash equivalents are considered to be the sameastheir fair values, due to their short-term nature,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

I, Figures as at March 31, 2018

Carrying amount
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Asat 31-03-2018 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Bank Deposits (Non-Current) 2,438,000

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 314,996

Trade Receivables : -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 48,209

Bank Balances Otherthan Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,330,620

Other Current Financial Assets -

TOTAL 24,131,825 -

Financialassets at fair value throughprofit or loss:

Security Deposits (Nou-Current) 1,829,136 1,829,136

TOTAL 1,829,136 1,829,136

Financialliabilities at amortised cost:

Borrowings (Non-Current) 1,493,124,479
* Level 3 Includes deferment of loan charges on pro-rata basis
during the tenure of loan

Borrowings (Current) 854,288,519

Trade Payables 11,214,290

Security Deposits (Current) -

Otherfinancialliabilities (Current) 58,717,614

TOTAL 2,417,344,902

Financialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Security Deposits (Non-Current)

TOTAL - ~

II. Figures as at March 31, 2019

Carrying amount

Asat 31-03-2019 Level 3
Financial assets at amortised cost:

Bank Deposits (Non-Current) 2,438,000

Other Non-Curtent Financial Assets 633,265

Trade Receivables "a

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,652

Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,130,521

‘Other Current Financial Assets -

TOTAL 4,206,438 -

Financial assets at fair value throughprofit orloss:

Security Deposits (Non-Current) 1,902,347 1,902,347

TOTAL 1,902,347 1,902,347

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Borrowings (Non-Current) 1,450,733,669

* Level 3 Includes deferment of loan charges on pro-rata basis
duting the tenure of loan

Borrowings (Current) 1,116,072,249

Trade Payables 10,479,382

Security Deposits (Current) -

Other financialliabilities (Current) 108,318,609

TOTAL ome 685,603,909 ~ - “
«octal liahiltty . . ea— —=

Financialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss;/
      

 

bh seu stre   - Security Deposits (Non-Current)

TOTAL
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Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

27, Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capitalare to:

- safeguardits ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to providereturns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and

- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reducethe cost of capital throughprudent management of deployed funds

and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business.

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view ofthree to five years, on the basis of a number offinancial ratios generally used by industry and by the
rating agencies. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of long term and short term borrowings less cash and

cash equivalent. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed ascapital. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods was as follows:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Amountin Rs}

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Totalliabilities 2,900,682,616 2,636,403,752

Less : Cash and cash equivalent 1,135,173 21,378,829

Net debt 2,899,547,443 2,615,024,924

Total equity 976,835,020 984,392,338

Net debt to equity ratio 296.83% 265.65%     
 

28, Sensitivity of estimates on provisions

The assumptions made for provisions relating to current period are consistent with those in the earlier years. The assumptions and estimates used for recognition of

such provisions are qualitative in nature andtheirlikelihood could alter in next financial year. Jt is impracticable for the company to compute the possible effect of

assumptions and estimates made in recognizing these provisions.

29, Current status of Business Operations

The Company could not makethe desired progress in development of the Golf Course cum Resort Villa project, undertaken by it, on accountof on goinglitigation in

respect of tenancy related matters pertaining to the project land and Court orderrestraining the Company from commencing the development work.‘his has led to

significant delay in execution of the above project. Such delay has resulted in to a cash crunch and consequential delay in payment ofinterest. The Dy. Collector and

SDO,following directions of the Hon'ble High Court of Goa, only in his recent order in FY 2017-18, has decided the tenancy issue in favor of the Company.

Subsequently, against this order, a Writ petition has been filed before the Hon'ble High Court of Goa, The managementis of the view that due to the cash crunch

situation, uncertainties exist. However, the project being unique and having a great potential going forward, the managementis in the process of mobilizing required
funds.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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